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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GEM (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE”)
GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies
to which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such
companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.
Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a
risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities
traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the
contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim
any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of
the contents of this report.
This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Simplicity Holding Limited (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for
the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is
accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other
matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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SIMPLICITY HOLDING LIMITED

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
Dear Shareholders,
On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), I am pleased to present the annual results of Simplicity
Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together with the Company, the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2022, together with the comparative figures for the year ended 31 March 2021.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
For the year ended 31 March 2022, the total Group revenue was approximately HK$85.6 million
(2021: approximately HK$97.4 million). Profit for the year attribute to the owners of the Company was
approximately HK4.0 million (2021: Profit of approximately HK$8.6 million). The decrease in profit was
mainly attributable to outbreak of COVID-19.

BUSINESS REVIEW
As at 31 March 2022, we are operating 7 restaurants under 3 brands, namely “Marsino”, “Baba Nyonya”
and “Grand Avenue”, and they are all situated across Hong Kong, Kowloon and the New Territories.
Among these 7 restaurants, 6 of them are operated by our own whereas 1 of them is operated by a
franchisee.
The number of restaurants as at 31 March 2021, 31 March 2022 and as at the date of this report are as
follows:

Restaurant
Marsino
Grand Avenue
Baba Nyonya (Note)

31 March
2021

31 March
2022

Date of
Report

3
2
4

3
1
3

3
1
3

9

7

7

Note: Tin Shui Wai Baba Nyonya is operated by a franchisee.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, a total of 929,125 customers patronised our restaurants, a
decrease of 372,139 customers or 28.6% when compared to the year ended 31 March 2021. Such
decrease was mainly due to the social distancing measures imposed by the Hong Kong Government as
well as the reduction of the number of our restaurants. The average spending per customer increased
from HK$69.5 to HK$80.5. The key operating information by brand are summarised as follows:
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
Key Operating Information by Brand

Number of Number of
customers operation
visits
days

Marsino
Grand Avenue
Baba Nyonya

Year ended 31 March 2022
Average
spending
Average
Total
per
daily Number of
revenue Customer
revenue
seats
HK$’000
HK$
HK$’000

Seat
turnover
rate

Number of
customers
visits

Number of
operation
days

Year ended 31 March 2021
Average
spending
Average
Total
per
daily
revenue Customer
revenue
HK$’000
HK$
HK$’000

Number of
seats

Seat
turnover
rate

324,950
264,406
339,769

1,095
730
1,095

23,389
21,684
29,764

72.0
82.0
87.6

21.4
29.7
27.2

183
198
181

4.9
3.3
6.1

408,811
414,626
477,827

1,404
970
1,460

27,961
28,636
38,983

68.4
69.1
81.6

19.9
29.5
26.7

269
280
235

4.5
4.2
5.6

929,125

2,920

74,837

80.5

25.6

562

4.8

1,301,264

3,834

95,580

69.5

24.9

784

4.8

Sales of food ingredients
Sales of drug vending
machines and
related services

10,748

1,841

—

—

85,585

97,421

PROSPECTS
Since the beginning of January 2020, COVID-19 outbreak has continuously and adversely affected the
global business environment including Hong Kong. The outlook remains uncertain despite vaccinations
being implemented in many countries, and the Management will continue to monitor the situation closely.
Depending on the duration of the disruption caused by COVID-19 outbreak, future financial results could
be further adversely affected by lower revenue and economic slowdown. We are actively taking various
measures to stimulate the revenue by offering various promotions and new dishes to attract the customers
and to lower our operating costs and to mitigate the impact on the Group, including but not limited to
negotiating with landlords for rental reductions and with suppliers for purchase discounts and minimising
the costs of hiring casual workers. The Company will continuously monitor the effects of the COVID-19
pandemic and respond swiftly to its potential impact on the financial position and operating results of the
Group.
The Group expects that after the coronavirus pandemic has been under control, the revenue generated
by the Group will be improved. The Group is committed to strengthen our core capabilities to keep on
improving its business performance and operating results so as to cope with these challenges and to
present satisfactory results and bring favourable returns to our shareholders.

APPRECIATION
On behalf of the Board, I would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to all our
valued customers, shareholders, investors and business partners for their continuous support. I would
also like to express my appreciation to all fellow Directors, the management team and employees for their
valuable contributions to achieve the major milestones of the Group to date.

Wong Suet Hing
Chairlady
Hong Kong, 12 August 2022
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
FINANCIAL SUMMARY
CONSOLIDATED RESULTS
2022
HK$’000

2021
HK$’000

85,585
3,929

97,421
8,735

4,007

8,585

2022
HK$’000

2021
HK$’000

Assets
Non-current assets
Current assets

31,042
65,745

46,238
53,919

Total assets

96,787

100,157

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

14,490
39,506

25,462
35,948

Total liabilities

53,996

61,410

Total equity

42,791

38,747

Total equity and liabilities

96,787

100,157

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

26,239
57,281

17,971
64,209

Revenue
Profit before tax
Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year attributable to owners of the Company

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Total Revenue by Brand
120000
97,421

100000
85,585

80000

60000
38,983

40000
23,389

28,636

27,961

29,764

21,684

20000

10,748
1,841

0

Marsino

Grand
Avenue

Baba
Nyonya

2022 HK$’000

Sale of food
ingredients

Total

2021 HK$’000

T Town
(Operated by a Franchisee)

新港城中心
MOS Town

嘉湖銀座

Fortune Kingswood

NEW TERRITORIES

KOWLOON

淘大商場
Amoy Plaza

HONG KONG ISLAND
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環翠商場

Wan Tsui Shopping Centre

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
OUR RESTAURANT LEASES

Brand
Marsino

# of
Stores Existing Location
3

FEHD
Licensed
Option to
Area
Renew
Lease
(Sq M)
(Yrs) Seats
Mall Operator Expiry Date

Amoy Plaza, Ngau Tau Kok

Hang Lung

15/12/2023

None

50

90.2

Fortune Kingswood, Tin Shui Wai

Fortune REIT

31/7/2022

3

66

108.6

Wan Tsui Shopping Centre, Chai Wan

Link REIT

13/9/2024

None

67

152.7

Henderson

31/8/2023

None

108

182.9

Grand Avenue

1

MOS Town, Ma On Shan
MOS Town, Ma On Shan

Henderson

25/3/2024

None

52

104.9

Baba Nyonya

3

Amoy Plaza, Ngau Tau Kok

Hang Lung

3/9/2024

None

63

118.5

T Town, Tin Shui Wai

Link REIT

22/4/2023

3

72

134.0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
INDUSTRY OVERVIEW
According to the data released by the Census and Statistics Department of the Government of Hong
Kong on 6 May 2022, the value of total receipts of the restaurants sector in the first quarter of 2022 was
provisionally estimated at HK$15.2 billion, representing a decrease of approximately 23.1% over a year
earlier. Over the same period, the provisional estimate of the value of total purchases by restaurants
decreased by approximately 18.9% to approximately HK$5.2 billion.
Analysed by type of restaurant and comparing the first quarter of 2022 with the first quarter of 2021, total
receipts of Chinese restaurants decreased by 33.5% in value and 35.4% in volume. Total receipts of
non-Chinese restaurants decreased by 23.6% in value and 26.1% in volume. Total receipts of fast-food
shops decreased by 11.3% in value and 13.9% in volume. Total receipts of bars decreased by 34.9% in
value and 34.0% in volume. As for miscellaneous eating and drinking places, total receipts decreased by
12.9% in value and 15.1% in volume.
A Government spokesman said that business of restaurants deteriorated sharply in the first quarter of
2022 due to the fifth wave of local epidemic and the resultant restrictive measures. The value of total
restaurant receipts fell visibly by 23.1% year-on-year despite a low base of comparison. On a seasonally
adjusted quarter-to-quarter comparison, it plunged by 40.2%.
The spokesman pointed out that the easing local epidemic situation and gradual relaxation of social
distancing measures, as well as the launch of a new round of Consumption Voucher Scheme, should
provide support to business of restaurants in the coming months. Various other support measures rolled
out by the Government should also help. It is essential for the community to work in unison to support the
Government to further stabilise the local epidemic situation. The Government will continue to monitor the
developments closely.
The outlook down the road depends critically on how the situation of the COVID-19 infection will evolve.
The Group will continue to monitor the developments closely and will be cautious in running our business.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW
We are a casual dining full service restaurant operator and up to the date of this report, we are operating
7 restaurants under 3 brands, namely “Marsino”, “Baba Nyonya” and “Grand Avenue”, and they are all
situated across Hong Kong, Kowloon and the New Territories. Among these 7 restaurants, 6 of them are
operated by our own whereas 1 of them is operated by a franchisee.
“Marsino” is a Chinese noodle specialist, “Grand Avenue” offers Thai cuisine, and “Baba Nyonya” offers
Malaysian cuisine. Each of “Marsino”, “Grand Avenue” and “Baba Nyonya” are founded and operated by
our Group except for one of “Baba Nyonya” is operated by a franchisee.
“Marsino” had recorded revenue of approximately HK$23.4 million during the year ended 31 March
2022, which is equivalent to 27.3% of our total revenue. As compared to the last corresponding period,
“Marsino” has experienced a decrease in revenue by 16.4% mainly due to reduction of number of
restaurants and the negative impacts brought by the COVID-19.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
“Grand Avenue” had recorded revenue of approximately HK$21.7 million during the year ended 31
March 2022, which is equivalent to 25.4% of our total revenue. As compared to the last corresponding
period, “Grand Avenue” has experienced a decrease in revenue by 24.1% due to reduction of number of
restaurant and the negative impacts brought by the COVID-19.
“Baba Nyonya” had recorded revenue of approximately HK$29.8 million during the year ended 31
March 2022, which is equivalent to 34.8% of our total revenue. As compared to the last corresponding
period, “Baba Nyonya” has experienced a decrease in revenue by 23.6% due to reduction of number of
restaurant and the negative impacts brought by the COVID-19.
In addition to the above restaurants, our Group also operates a central kitchen which supplies raw
materials and consumables to our restaurants. We established our central kitchen as early as in 2007,
and then we moved to the existing premises due to expansion. Our management believes that our central
kitchen can continuously improve the efficiency of our operation.
The segment of “Sale of food ingredients” had recorded revenue of approximately HK$10.7 million during
the year ended 31 March 2022, which is equivalent to 12.5% of our total revenue. As compared to the last
corresponding period, the segment of “Sale of food ingredients” has experienced an increase in revenue
by 494.4% due to sales growth.
On 30 August 2021, the Company has completed an acquisition of the entire issued share capital of
Lucky State, Lucky State together with its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the sales of drug
vending machines and related services in the PRC.
On 30 August 2021, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party, to sell 50% equity interests in the JV Company which is
principally engaged in the cold storage business. The completion of the disposal has taken place on 30
August 2021 and the Group ceases to hold any interest in the JV Company upon the completion.

2022 ANNUAL REPORT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FUTURE PROSPECTS
The economic downturn accompanied by the outbreak of the coronavirus pandemic in Hong Kong, had
affected the operating environment for food and beverage business in Hong Kong. Notwithstanding that
the degree of impact of the coronavirus pandemic will depend on the duration of the pandemic and the
prevention and control measures taken by the Hong Kong government, the catering business in Hong
Kong will still be facing a lot of uncertainties in the coming future. The Group expects that after the
coronavirus pandemic has been under control, the revenue generated by the Group will be improved.
The Group is committed to strengthen our core capabilities to keep on improving its business
performance and operating results so as to cope with these challenges and to present satisfactory results
and bring favourable returns to our shareholders. In view of the challenges faced by the Group, we will
adopt a conservative and cautious approach to operate our businesses. Actions we have taken or are
likely to take are:
1)

Minimising our staff costs by reducing the usage of staff in our restaurants;

2)

Negotiating with our landlords for rent concession;

3)

Negotiating with our suppliers for purchase discounts and longer payment terms;

4)

Expanding the take-away product line such as food pack and ready-to-eat products and increasing
marketing efforts and sales stimulating measures;

5)

Cooperating with food delivery companies to deliver our food to the customers;

6)

Participating in food fairs to promote our take-away product lines;

7)

Supplying food materials to a chain of restaurants in Hong Kong;

8)

Opening new restaurants at lower costs; and

9)

Refining business strategies to cope with the continuing challenges.

To cope with the impact of this tough conditions, the Group has expanded new business in the PRC. In
order to enhance and diversify the Group’s business prospect, the Group has completed the acquisition
of business of automatic drug vending machines that the Group offers an innovative medical care and
healthcare to customers which providing them with great conveniences as to where and when to have
diagnosis service and purchase of medicines. Through installing and operating the machines, and
providing the relevant ancillary services and facilities in the PRC, the Group plans to achieve a one-stop
integrated medical care and healthcare ecology, shares the burden in meeting the increasing medical
care demands with the domestic hospitals and pharmacies, and improve the national medical care
environment.
In the long run, the Group aims at extending its food and beverage business in Hong Kong as well as
the business of automatic drug vending machines in the PRC to enhance values to our shareholders. The
Board considers that these strategic initiatives will enable the Group to broaden its income streams and
asset base, thus contributing to future development and growth of the Group.
Details are set out in the Company’s announcement date of 4 August 2021, 6 August 2021, 17 August
2021 and 30 August 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue
For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group recorded revenue of approximately HK$85.6 million (year
ended 31 March 2021: approximately HK$97.4 million), representing a decrease of 12.1% compared
with the same period of the previous financial year. The decrease in revenue was primarily attributed to
reduction of the number of our restaurants as well as the severe economic downturn as caused by the
COVID-19.

Raw materials and consumables used
The raw materials and consumables used mainly represents the costs of food ingredients and beverages
for the operation of the Group’s restaurants and central kitchen. The major food ingredients purchased
by the Group include, but are not limited to, meat, seafood, frozen food, vegetables and beverages. Raw
materials and consumables used is one of the major components of the Group’s operating expenses
which amounted to approximately HK$31.7 million and HK$29.2 million for each of the year ended
31 March 2022 and 2021, respectively, representing approximately 37.0% and 30.0% of the Group’s
total revenue for the corresponding periods. Such increase was mainly contributed by the increase in
additional marketing efforts for sales stimulating measures as well as higher food costs associated with
launching new food menu at the initial stage.

Other gains and losses, net
For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group recorded other gains of approximately HK$19.5 million
(year ended 31 March 2021: other gains of approximately HK$3.5 million), representing a net increased
by approximately HK$16.0 million. Such increase was mainly due to the gain on disposal of asset held for
sale and fair value change on contingent consideration.

Staff costs
Staff costs was approximately HK$32.6 million for the year ended 31 March 2022, representing a
decrease of approximately 22.4% as compared to approximately HK$42.0 million for the year ended
31 March 2021. Such decrease was mainly due to reduction of the number of our restaurants and the
tightened cost control.

Depreciation
Depreciation expenses were approximately HK$15.0 million and HK$24.7 million for the year ended
31 March 2022 and 2021 respectively. Such decrease was mainly due to reduction of number of our
restaurants.

Rental and related expenses
The rental expenses for the year ended 31 March 2022 amounted to approximately HK$4.3 million,
representing an increase of approximately 13.2% as compared with that of the year ended 31 March 2021
which amounted to approximately HK$3.8 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Utility expenses
Utility expenses primarily consist of electricity, gas and water supplies of the Group. For the year ended
31 March 2022 and 2021, the total utility expenses amounted to approximately HK$3.8 million and HK$5.0
million, respectively.

Other expenses
The Group’s other expenses increased slightly by approximately 0.7% from approximately HK$14.5 million
for the year ended 31 March 2021 to approximately HK$14.6 million for the year ended 31 March 2022.

Finance costs
The Group’s finance costs represented interest on bank borrowings and interest on lease liabilities after
the HKFRS 16 coming into effect in 2019. For the year ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, finance costs
were approximately HK$1.1 million and HK$2.3 million, respectively.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company
For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group recorded a profit attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately HK$4.0 million, as compared to the profit of approximately HK$8.6 million for the year
ended 31 March 2021. The decrease in profit was mainly due to the reduction of the number of our
restaurants and the Group recorded a lower amount of government subsidies during the year and the
fifth wave of the COVID-19 pandemic in the last quarter brought serious disruptions to business and
operations.

Dividend
The Board does not recommend any payment of dividend for the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021: Nil).

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE
The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures arise from the business operations in
the PRC denominated in RMB. The Directors of the Company have a positive attitude to regularly monitor
the Group’s exposure to foreign exchange so as to reduce the foreign exchange rate risk to a minimum
level. To a larger extent, foreign exchange risks were minimised via balancing the foreign currency
monetary assets versus the corresponding currency liabilities, and foreign currency revenues versus the
corresponding currency expenditures. In light of the above, it was considered that the Group’s exposure
to foreign exchange risks was not significant and no hedging measure had been undertaken by the
Group.
The RMB is not freely convertible into other foreign currencies and conversion of the RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to rules and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government. The Group will closely monitor its foreign currency exposure and will consider using hedging
instruments in respect of significant foreign currency exposure as and when appropriate.
As at 31 March 2022, the Group had no investment in any financial derivatives, foreign exchange
contracts, interest or currency swaps, hedgings or other financial arrangements for hedging purposes to
reduce any currency risk nor made any over the-counter contingent forward transactions.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
TREASURY POLICIES
The Directors will continue to follow a prudent policy in managing the Group’s cash balances and maintain
a strong and healthy liquidity to ensure that the Group is well placed to take advantage of future growth
opportunities.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
As at 31 March 2022, the Group did not have any outstanding capital commitment.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 March 2022, the Group did not have any material contingent liabilities.

CHARGE ON GROUP ASSETS
At 31 March 2022, the Group did not have any charge of assets.
At 31 March 2021, bank loans of HK$15,000,000 were secured by leasehold land and building owned by
the Group with the carrying amount of approximately HK$29,860,137. The Group had repaid all the bank
loans on 25 May 2021.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
Detail is set out in the note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES, AND PLANS
FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS
In respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2022, details are set out in note
30 of acquisition of subsidiaries and set out in the Company’s announcement date of 4 August 2021, 6
August 2021, 17 August 2021 and 30 August 2021.
On 30 August 2021, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Foodies Group Limited, entered into
a sale and purchase agreement with an independent third party, to sell 50% equity interests in the JV
Company which is principally engaged in the cold storage business. The completion of the disposal has
taken place on 30 August 2021 and the Group ceases to hold any interest in the JV Company upon the
completion.
Except for the above, there was no significant investment held, material acquisition and disposal of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2022. There is no
other plan for material investments or capital assets as at 31 March 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

16

1)

As we lease all of the properties for our restaurant operations, any attractive location will likely
be subject to high demand from, among others, other food and beverage operators that compete
directly with our Group for the same location. As such, there is no assurance that our Group would
be able to find suitable premises that are commercially attractive for its restaurants with reasonable
commercial terms in the event there is a need for relocation or our Group intends to open new
restaurants. In addition, it is uncertain that all our leases can be renewed at all when they expire
or on terms acceptable to us. Even if our Group is able to renew or extend its leases, the rental
expenses may increase significantly, which could adversely affect our profitability.

2)

We rely on our central kitchen to supply some of our semi-processed or processed food ingredients
used in our restaurants and any disruption of operation at our central kitchen could adversely affect
our business and operations.

3)

If our suppliers fail to deliver food with an acceptable quality or in a timely manner, we may
experience supply shortages and increased food costs.

4)

We require various approvals and licences to operate our business, and the loss of, or failure to,
obtain or renew any or all of these approvals and licences, could materially and adversely affect our
business.

5)

Labour shortages or increases in labour costs will increase our Group’s operating costs and reduce
our profitability.

6)

Risks related to the spread of coronavirus and other possible infectious disease which may
adversely affect the business of the food and beverage sector.

SIMPLICITY HOLDING LIMITED

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Ms. Wong Suet Hing（黃雪卿）(“Ms. SH Wong”), aged 69, is our Chairlady and an executive Director.
She is primarily responsible for overseeing the overall operations and procurement of our Group including
but not limited to handling suppliers relationship, approval of procurement, review of stock level and order
size and approval on menu changes. Being raised in a family engaging in the food and beverage industry
operating a Hong Kong style dai pai dong（大牌檔）(an open-air food stall), Ms. SH Wong is devoted to
the food and beverage industry. Ms. SH Wong has nearly 50 years of experience in this industry, since the
1960s when she was working in the dai pai dong known as Sui Yuen（瑞園）in To Kwa Wan. Ms. SH Wong
is the mother of Ms. ST Wong. She is also the sister of Mr. Wong Muk Fai Woody (“Mr. MF Wong”) and an
aunt of Mr. Ma Sui Hong (“Mr. SH Ma”).
Ms. Wong Sau Ting Peony（王秀婷）(“Ms. ST Wong”), aged 47, is our Chief Executive Officer and an
executive Director. She is primarily responsible for and works with Ms. SH Wong to oversee our Group’s
overall operations, strategic direction and business development. Ms. ST Wong graduated from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong with a degree in bachelor of social science in May 1997 and a degree in
master of business administration which was a distance learning course organised by University of South
Australia in September 2005. Ms. ST Wong is the daughter of Ms. SH Wong. She is also the niece of Mr.
MF Wong and cousin of Mr. SH Ma.
Mr. Choi Pun Lap（蔡本立）(“Mr. Choi”), aged 44, was appointed as our executive Director on 26 April
2022. He has knowledge in corporate finance transactions in Hong Kong. He is an executive director
of Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (stock code: 8148) and Zhejiang United Investment Holdings
Group Limited (stock code: 8366), both are listed on the GEM. He is an independent non-executive
director of Sunway International Holdings Limited (stock code: 58) which the issued shares are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and he is also an independent non-executive director of On Real
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 8245), which is listed on the GEM. In the past, Mr. Choi was a
financial controller of a company which is listed in GEM in 2019 and he was a senior audit manager in the
audit department of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB”) in Hong Kong. He has worked in HLB for
more than ten years from February 2007 to December 2017.
Mr. Choi is a valuation practitioner of International Association of Certified Valuation Specialists since
2019. He is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member of Certified
Practising Accountants Australia and a member of Chartered Global Management Accountant. Mr. Choi
graduated from Hong Kong Metropolitan University with a Master of Law (Chinese Business Law) in Hong
Kong in 2017. He obtained a Bachelor of Business (Accounting) from Central Queensland University
in Australia in 2003 and further studied Postgraduate Diploma of Accounting in Monash University in
Australia in 2005.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Lo Cheuk Fei Jeffrey (“Mr. Lo”), aged 29, was appointed as an independent non-executive director
on 27 July, 2021. Mr. Lo obtained a Master’s degree with Honours in Accounting and Finance from The
University of Edinburgh in 2016. Mr. Lo currently serves as a finance manager of a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Lo is also the company secretary of
On Real International Holdings Limited (HKSE: 8245). Mr. Lo is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, the Association of Chartered and Certified Accountants and the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.
Mr. Yeung Man Sun（楊万鋠）(“Mr. Yeung”), aged 42, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 19 August 2021. Mr. Yeung has more than eighteen (18) years of experience in the accounting
and financial industries gained from different business entities, including PricewaterhouseCoopers from
September 2003 to June 2007, with his last position as a senior associate. He served as a company
secretary of Evershine Group Holdings Limited (a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 8022) from April 2020 to January 2021. Presently, he is the executive director of RTC Capital
Limited and the company secretary of China 33 Media Group Limited (a company listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 8087).
Mr. Yeung also served as an executive director of My Heart Bodibra Group Limited (a company listed on
GEM of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8297) from February 2018 to December 2018.
Mr. Yeung obtained a Bachelor of Business Administration in Accountancy degree from City University of
Hong Kong in November 2003 and a Master of Corporate Governance degree from Polytechnic University
of Hong Kong in September 2015. Mr. Yeung is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, associate member of both the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the
United Kingdom and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
Mr. Chan Wai Pun（陳偉斌）(“Mr. Chan”), aged 55, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 19 January 2022. Mr. Chan has more than nineteen (19) years of experience in the food
and beverage industry gained from different business entities, including Starbucks as the first General
Manager of Southern part of Mainland China back in 2002. From January 2007 to March 2010, Mr. Chan
worked as the Marketing Director and General Manager of Carpenter Tan Holdings Limited and supported
the company to be successfully listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0837). From January 2011 to
January 2015, Mr. Chan worked as the General Manager of Hui Lau Shan Food Manufacturing Company
Limited, which operates dessert restaurants in Hong Kong. From April 2015 to February 2016, Mr. Chan
worked as the Group Chief Operating Officer and Executive Director of Bite Limited, which operates
several restaurants and fast food brands in Hong Kong including Triple O’s, Yo Mama, Ciao Chow and
Grom. Presently, he is the Group CEO of HR Woodward Foods Asia Company Limited.
Mr. Chan obtained a Master of Business Administration degree from University of South Australia in 2003
and a Master of Arts degree from Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2015. Mr. Chan is also a Certified
National Food Safety Manager of National Registry of Food Safety Professionals (USA).
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Mr. Wong Hoyen Pegasus （王浩仁） (“Mr. HY Wong”), aged 47, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 17 May 2022. Mr. HY Wong is currently (i) chairman of Pegasus Global
Development (Holdings) Co. Ltd, major businesses of Pegasus Global Development (Holdings) Co. Ltd
are real estate investment, new energy trading, luxury goods trading, super yacht sales and leasing, and
private jet leasing (ii) executive director of Federation Development Co. Ltd, (iii) independent commercial
director of Camper & Nicholsons Asia China and (iv) chairman of the Belt and Road China Arab
Investment and Trade Association.
Mr. HY Wong obtained Master of International Real Estate Management from Peking University in 2005
and Master of Marketing Strategy from Newport University in 2002.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Ms. Wong Suet Ching（黃雪貞）(“Ms. SC Wong”), aged 63, is our controlling shareholder and joined
our Group on 10 September 2014 as food factory assistant and promoted to food factory manager at April
2017. She is mainly responsible for the operation of our central kitchen. Ms. SC Wong has over 40 years
of experience in the food and beverage industry earned from running cha chaan teng with her husband
prior to joining our Group. Ms. SC Wong is the sister of Ms. SH Wong and Mr. MF Wong and aunt of Ms.
ST Wong and Mr. SH Ma.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2022.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance to safeguard the interests
of the Shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability. The Company has adopted the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules as
its own code of corporate governance. The Company has complied with all applicable code provisions
under the CG Code throughout the year. The Company will continue to review and monitor its corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

THE BOARD
Responsibilities
The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group, oversees the Group’s strategic decisions
and monitors business and performance. The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for day-to-day management and operation of the Group to the senior management of the Group. To
oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs, the Board has established three Board committees
including the Audit and Risk Management Committee, the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) (together, the “Board
Committees”). The Board has delegated to the Board Committees responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference.
All Directors have carried out duties in good faith and in compliance with applicable laws and regulations,
and have acted in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders at all times.
The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance in respect of legal action against the Directors.
The insurance coverage will be reviewed on an annual basis.

Board Composition
As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprised four executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors:
Executive Directors:
Ms. Wong Suet Hing (Chairlady)
Ms. Wong Sau Ting Peony (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wong Chi Chiu Henry (resigned with effect from 30 June 2022)
Mr. Choi Pun Lap (appointed with effect from 26 April 2022)
Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Ms. Ng Yau Kuen Carmen (resigned with effect from 27 July 2021)
Mr. Yu Ronald Patrick Lup Man (resigned with effect from 19 August 2021)
Mrs. Cheung Lau Lai Yin Becky (resigned with effect from 19 January 2022)
Mr. Lo Cheuk Fei Jeffrey (appointed with effect from 27 July 2021)
Mr. Yeung Man Sun (appointed with effect from 19 August 2021)
Mr. Chan Wai Pun (appointed with effect from 19 January 2022)
Mr. Wong Hoyen Pegasus (appointed with effect from 17 May 2022)
The biographies of the Directors are set out under the section headed “Directors and Senior Management”
in this annual report.
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During the year, the Board has met at all times the requirements under Rules 5.05(1) and 5.05(2) of the
GEM Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors with
at least one independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.
The Company has also complied with Rule 5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
independent non-executive Directors representing at least one-third of the Board.
The Company believes that the diversity of Board members will be immensely beneficial for the
enhancement of the Company’s performance. Therefore, the Company has adopted a Board diversity
policy to ensure that the Company will, when determining the composition of the Board, consider Board
diversity in terms of, among other things, gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. All Board appointments will be based on merits, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board.
As each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed his independence pursuant to Rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company considers all of them to be independent parties.
Save as disclosed in the Directors’ biographies set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report, none of the Directors have any personal relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationship) with any other Director and chief
executives of the Company.
All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve on the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.
As regards the CG Code provision requiring directors to disclose the number and nature of offices held in
public companies or organisations and other significant commitments as well as the identity of the public
companies or organisations and the time involved to the issuer, the Directors have agreed to disclose
their commitments and any subsequent change to the Company in a timely manner.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
According to A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of the chairman and the chief executive should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. During the year, Ms. SH Wong, the chairlady of the
Company, is responsible for overseeing the overall operations and procurement of the Group. While our
chief executive officer, Ms. ST Wong has a clear distinction of responsibilities and she works together with
the other executive Directors and senior management to be responsible for day-to-day operations of the
Group and different aspects of the business.
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BOARD DIVERSITY
The Board has adopted a board diversity policy on 31 December 2018 which sets out the approach to
achieve diversity on the Board.
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of factors, including diversity in gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service
and independence.
The final decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board. For further details, please refer to the board diversity policy published on the Company’s website.
The Nomination Committee has reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board and
confirmed that the Company has maintained a balanced composition with a strong independent element
on the Board. The Directors collectively possess diversified experience in management and broad
industrial experience. Three independent non-executive Directors possess professional knowledge in
accounting and finance, food safety expertise and business management, respectively. Further details of
the Directors are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this report.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (“INEDS”)
The INEDs serve a critical function of advising the management on strategy development and ensure
that the Board maintains high standards in financial and other mandatory reporting as well as providing
adequate checks and balances for safeguarding the interests of the shareholders and the Company as a
whole.
The INEDs are all experienced with expertise in different areas of finance, accounting, industry knowledge
and expertise. With their professional knowledge and experience, the INEDs advise the Company on
its operation and management; provide independent advice; and participate in the Company’s different
committees including Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee. Each of the
independent non-executive Directors has made annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and therefore considers each of them to be independent.
All of the Directors including both the executive Directors and the INEDs are appointed for a specific
term. Each of the INEDs has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a period of three
years subject to the rotation requirement and shall continue thereafter unless terminated by either party
giving at least three months’ notice in writing. In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association
and, at each Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company, one-third of the Directors will retire from
office by rotation but will be eligible for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company adopted Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required standard of dealings. Having
made specific enquiries to all the Directors and all the Directors had confirmed they have complied with
the required standard of dealings and the code of conduct for directors’ securities transactions during the
year ended 31 March 2022.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS BY CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS
Pursuant to the deed of non-competition dated 29 January 2018 (“Deed of Non-Competition”) entered
into by Marvel Jumbo Limited (“MJL”), Ms. SH Wong, Ms. ST Wong, Ms. Chow Lai Fan (“Ms. LF Chow”),
Ms. SC Wong and Mr. SH Ma (collectively, the “Controlling Shareholders”), each of our Controlling
Shareholders have jointly and severally, irrevocably and unconditionally undertaken to and covenanted
with our Company (for ourselves and for the benefit of our subsidiaries) that during the continuation of
the Deed of Non-Competition he/she/it shall not, and shall procure that his/her/its close associates (other
than any member of our Group) not to, whether on his/her/its own account or in conjunction with or on
behalf of any person, firm or company, whether directly or indirectly, carry on a business, or be interested
or involved or engaged in or acquire or hold any right or interest, or otherwise involved in (in each case
whether as a shareholder, partner, principal, agent, director, employee or otherwise and whether for
profit, reward or otherwise) any business, which competes or is likely to compete directly or indirectly
with the business currently and from time to time engaged by our Group (including but not limited to the
operation of restaurants in Hong Kong and any other country or jurisdiction).
The Company has received an annual declaration from each of the Controlling Shareholders confirming
that they complied with the undertakings for the year ended 31 March 2022. The Controlling Shareholders
also confirmed in the said annual declaration that none of them had any interest in a business, other
than business of the Group, which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022.
The following corporate governance measures have been adopted to monitor the compliance of the Deed
of Non-Competition for the year ended 31 March 2022:
(i)

the Controlling Shareholders had procured the INEDs to review, on an annual basis, the compliance
with the non-competition undertakings by the Controlling Shareholders under the Deed of
Non-Competition;

(ii)

the Controlling Shareholders had promptly provided all information requested by the Company
which is necessary for the annual review by the INEDs and the enforcement of the Deed of
Non-Competition;

(iii)

the Controlling Shareholders had provided to the Company a written confirmation relating to the
compliance of the Deed of Non-Competition and declared that they had complied with the Deed of
Non-Competition for the year ended 31 March 2022; and

(iv)

the INEDs, having reviewed the relevant information and the written confirmation provided by the
Controlling Shareholders, decided that the undertakings in respect of the Deed of Non-Competition
had been duly enforced and complied with by the Controlling Shareholders for the year ended 31
March 2022.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS
During the year ended 31 March 2022, none of the Directors or their respective associates had engaged
in or had any interest in any business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the businesses of the Group.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD
The Board reserves its decisions on all major matters of the Company, including the approval and
monitoring of major policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of Directors and other significant financial and operational matters.
The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the Company are delegated to the chief
executive officer, the other executive Directors and the senior management. The delegated work tasks are
reviewed periodically. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions
occurred. The INEDs bring a wide range of business and expertise, independent judgement and
experiences to the Board.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION
The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance duties and has adopted written terms of
reference on its corporate governance functions.
The duties of the Board in respect of the corporate governance functions include:
(i)

Developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance;

(ii)

Reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management;

(iii)

Reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements;

(iv)

Developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and Directors;

(v)

Reviewing the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report;

(vi)

Developing, reviewing and monitoring the implementation of the shareholders’ communication policy
to ensure its effectiveness, and make recommendation to the Board where appropriate to enhance
shareholders’ relationship with the Company; and

(vii) Reviewing and monitoring the Company’s compliance with the Company’s whistleblowing policy.
During the year, the above corporate governance duties have been duly performed and executed by the
Board and the Board has reviewed the Company’s compliance with the Code.
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INDUCTION AND CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS
Each newly appointed director receives formal, comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion
of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and full awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations under the GEM Listing Rules
and relevant statutory requirements.
All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. The Company has continuously provided relevant training materials to the
Directors. Directors participated in courses relating to roles, functions and duties of a listed company
director or further enhancement of their professional development by the way of attending training
courses or reading relevant materials.
According to the information provided by the Directors, a summary of training received by the Directors
throughout the year ended 31 March 2022 is as follows:

Name of Directors

Continuous
professional
development
programmes

Executive Directors
Ms. Wong Suet Hing (Chairlady)
Ms. Wong Sau Tine Peony
Mr. Wong Chi Chiu Henry

Yes
Yes
Yes

Independent non-executive Directors
Ms. Ng Yau Kuen Carmen (resigned on 27 July 2021)
Mr. Yu Ronald Patrick Lup Man (resigned on 19 August 2021)
Mrs. Cheung Lau Lai Yin Becky (resigned on 19 January 2022)
Mr. Lo Cheuk Fei Jeffrey (appointed on 27 July 2021)
Mr. Yeung Man Sun (appointed on 19 August 2021)
Mr. Chan Wai Pun (appointed on 19 January 2022)

Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes

The nature of continuous professional development programmes are reading seminar materials and
updates relating to the latest development of the GEM Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements.
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BOARD MEETINGS
The Board meets regularly, and at least four times a year, in person or by telephone of by means of
electronic communication. The Chairlady also meets with the INEDs at least once a year without the
presence of the executive Directors. Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at least
14 days before the meetings. For all other Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally
given. All notices, agendas, schedules and the relevant information of each Board and committee meeting
are generally made available to Directors or committee members in advance. The Board and each
Director also have separate and independent access to the management whenever necessary.
The company secretary of the Company or the secretary to the board committees is responsible for taking
and/or keeping minutes of all Board meetings and various committees’ meetings in sufficient detail. Draft
minutes are normally circulated to Directors for comment within a reasonable time after each meeting is
held, and the final version of the minutes is opened for Director’s inspection.
During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Board convened a total of eight meetings in person or by
means of electronic communication. Attendance of each Director at the Board meetings is set out below:

Name of Directors
Executive Directors
Ms. Wong Suet Hing (Chairlady)
Ms. Wong Sau Tine Peony
Mr. Wong Chi Chiu Henry
Independent non-executive Directors
Ms. Ng Yau Kuen Carmen (resigned on 27 July 2021)
Mrs. Cheung Lau Lai Yin Becky (resigned on 19 January 2022)
Mr. Yu Ronald Patrick Lup Man (resigned on 19 August 2021)
Mr. Lo Cheuk Fei Jeffrey (appointed on 27 July 2021)
Mr. Yeung Man Sun (appointed on 19 August 2021)
Mr. Chan Wai Pun (appointed on 19 January 2022)

General Meeting
Attended/Held

Board Meeting
Attended/Held

1/1
1/1
1/1

12/12
12/12
12/12

1/1
1/1
1/1

3/3
11/11
7/7
8/8
4/4
1/1

INDEPENDENT BOARD COMMITTEE
Where there are matters involving connected or continuing connected transactions, so far as required
under the GEM Listing Rules, an Independent Board Committee, comprising wholly the INEDs, will be
established.

BOARD COMMITTEES
The Board has established three committees, including the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Audit Committee with delegated powers for overseeing particular aspects of the
Company’s affair. Each of the committees of the Company has been established with written terms of
reference.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Remuneration Committee was set up on 29 January 2018 in compliance with Appendix 15 of the
GEM Listing Rules. The terms of reference setting out the Remuneration Committee’s authority, duties and
responsibilities are available on both the website of the Stock Exchange and the Company’s website.
The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration policy and structure of the Directors and the senior management and determining the
remuneration packages of all executive Directors and senior management. The Remuneration Committee
is also responsible to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/
her own remuneration, which will be determined by reference to the performance of the individual and the
Company as well as market practice and conditions.
The Remuneration Committee will hold at least one meeting during the year. The members will review the
remuneration package of Directors and the senior management of the Company.
The Remuneration Committee comprises seven members namely:
Mr. Chan Wai Pun (Chairman)
Mr. Lo Cheuk Fei Jeffrey
Mr. Yeung Man Sun
Ms. Wong Suet Hing
Ms. Wong Sau Ting Peony
Mr. Choi Pun Lap (appointed with effect from 26 April 2022)
Mr. Wong Hoyen Pegasus (appointed with effect from 17 May 2022)
Majority of the members are independent non-executive Directors.
During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Remuneration Committee convened one committee meeting.
Attendance of each Remuneration Committee member is set out below:

Name of Directors

Remuneration
Committee
Meeting
Attended/Held

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Wai Pun (Chairman) (appointed on 19 January 2022)
Mrs. Cheung Lau Lai Yin Becky (resigned on 19 January 2022)
Ms. Ng Yau Kuen Carmen (resigned on 27 July 2021)
Mr. Yu Ronald Patrick Lup Man (resigned on 19 August 2021)
Mr. Lo Cheuk Fei Jeffrey (appointed on 27 July 2021)
Mr. Yeung Man Sun (appointed on 19 August 2021)

0/0
1/1
1/1
1/1
0/0
0/0

Executive Directors
Ms. Wong Suet Hing
Ms. Wong Sau Tine Peony

1/1
1/1
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE
The Company has established a Nomination Committee on 29 January 2018 for making recommendations
to the Board on appointment of Directors and succession planning for the Directors. On 31 December
2018, the Company adopted a set of revised terms of reference of the Nomination Committee in line
with the GEM Listing Rules requirement. The terms of reference setting out the Nomination Committee’s
authority, duties and responsibilities are available on both the website of the Stock Exchange and the
Company’s website.
The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the Board structure, size and diversity
(including without limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service); make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to implement the Company’s corporate strategy; identify and nominate appropriate candidates to fill
vacancies of Directors for the Board’s approval; assess the independence of the INEDs and review the
board diversity policy. The nomination procedures are set out as follows:
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1.

The secretary of the Nomination Committee shall call a meeting and invite nominations of candidates
from Board members if any, for consideration by the Nomination Committee prior to its meeting. The
Nomination Committee may also put forward candidates who are not nominated by Board members.

2.

For filling a casual vacancy, the Nomination Committee shall make recommendations for the
Board’s consideration and approval. For proposing candidates to stand for election at a general
meeting, the Nomination Committee shall make nominations to the Board for its consideration and
recommendation.

3.

Until the issue of the shareholder circular, the nominated persons shall not assume that they have
been proposed by the Board to stand for election at the general meeting.

4.

In order to provide information of the candidates nominated by the Board to stand for election at a
general meeting, and to invite nominations from shareholders, a circular will be sent to shareholders.
The circular will set out the lodgment period for shareholders to make the nominations. The names,
brief biographies (including qualifications and relevant experience), independence, proposed
remuneration and any other information, as required pursuant to the applicable laws, rules and
regulations, of the proposed candidates will be included in the circular to shareholders.

5.

A shareholder can serve a notice to the company secretary within the lodgement period of
its intention to propose a resolution to elect a certain person as an INED, without the Board’s
recommendation or the Nomination Committee’s nomination, other than those candidates set
out in the shareholder circular. The particulars of the candidates so proposed will be sent to all
shareholders for information by a supplementary circular.

6.

A candidate is allowed to withdraw his candidature at any time before the general meeting by
serving a notice in writing to the company secretary.

7.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to its recommendation of candidates to
stand for election at any general meeting.

8.

As there may be more candidates than the vacancies available, and the “gross-vote” method will be
used to determine who shall be elected as an INED, shareholder proposed resolutions shall therefore
take the same form as the resolutions proposed for the candidates recommended by the Board.
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Currently, the Nomination Committee comprises seven members namely:
Mr. Yeung Man Sun (Chairman)
Mr. Lo Cheuk Fei Jeffrey
Mr. Chan Wai Pun
Ms. Wong Suet Hing
Ms. Wong Sau Ting Peony
Mr. Choi Pun Lap (appointed with effect from 26 April 2022)
Mr. Wong Hoyen Pegasus (appointed with effect from 17 May 2022)
Majority of the members are independent non-executive Directors.
Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee, meeting shall be held at least once a
year and additional meetings should be held if the committee shall so request.
During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Nomination Committee convened four committee meetings.
Attendance of each Nomination Committee member is set out below:

Name of Directors

Nomination
Committee
Meeting
Attended/Held

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Yeung Man Sun (Chairman) (appointed on 19 August 2021)
Mr. Lo Cheuk Fei Jeffrey (appointed on 27 July 2021)
Mr. Chan Wai Pun (appointed on 19 January 2022)
Ms. Ng Yau Kuen Carmen (resigned on 27 July 2021)
Mr. Yu Ronald Patrick Lup Man (resigned on 19 August 2021)
Mrs. Cheung Lau Lai Yin Becky (resigned on 19 January 2022)

1/1
2/2
0/0
1/1
2/2
3/3

Executive Directors
Ms. Wong Suet Hing
Ms. Wong Sau Tine Peony

4/4
4/4
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Company has established an Audit Committee on 29 January 2018 with written terms of reference
in compliance with Rules 5.28 and 5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules. On 31 December 2018, the Company
adopted a set of revised terms of reference of the Audit Committee in line with the GEM Listing
Rules requirement. The terms of reference setting out the Audit Committee’s authority, duties and
responsibilities are available on both the website of the Stock Exchange and the Company’s website. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee are mainly to:
•

Make recommendation to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any
questions of resignation or dismissal of that auditor

•

Review the adequacy of the Group’s policies and systems regarding risk management and internal
controls

•

Review the financial reporting principles and practices applied by the Group in preparing its
financial statements

•

Before audit commencement, review external auditor’s independence, objectivity, effectiveness of
the audit process and the scope of the external audit, including the engagement letter

•

Monitor integrity of the Group’s financial statements and the annual, quarterly and interim financial
reports, and review significant financial reporting judgements contained in them prior to approval by
the Board

Currently, the Audit Committee comprises four INEDs as follows:
M.r
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
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Lo Cheuk Fei Jeffrey
Chan Wai Pun
Wong Hoyen Pegasus (appointed with effect from 17 May 2022)
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Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Audit Committee, meetings shall be held not less than four times
per year and additional meetings should be held as the work of the Committee demands. During the
year ended 31 March 2022, the Audit Committee convened 5 committee meetings. The Audit Committee
attended the audit committee planning meeting with the auditors, reviewed the Group’s annual results
and annual report for the year ended 31 March 2021, first quarterly results for the three months ended
30 June 2021, interim results for the six months ended 30 September 2021, and third quarterly results for
the nine months ended 31 December 2021. The Audit Committee also discussed internal controls, risk
management, financial reporting and change of auditor matters. Attendance of each Audit Committee
member is set out below:

Name of Directors
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Yeung Man Sun (Chairman) (appointed on 19 August 2021)
Mr. Lo Cheuk Fei Jeffrey (appointed on 27 July 2021)
Mr. Chan Wai Pun (appointed on 19 January 2022)
Ms. Ng Yau Kuen Carmen (resigned on 27 July 2021)
Mr. Yu Ronald Patrick Lup Man (resigned on 19 August 2021)
Mrs. Cheung Lau Lai Yin Becky (resigned on 19 January 2022)

Audit Committee
Meeting
Attended/Held

2/2
3/3
1/1
2/2
3/3
4/4

All the members are independent non-executive Directors (including two independent non-executive
Directors who possesses the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise). None of the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
Company’s existing external auditors. The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2022 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee is of the opinion
that the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022 comply with
applicable accounting standards, GEM Listing Rules and that adequate disclosures have been made.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS
The Company has adopted shareholders communication policy with the objective of ensuring that the
shareholders and potential investors are provided with ready, equal and timely access to balanced and
understandable information about the Company (including its financial performance, strategic goals and
plans, major business developments, corporate governance and other material information), to enable
the shareholders and the potential investors to make an informed decision on their investments in the
shares and other securities of the Company, and to actively participate in the activities organised by the
Company for them.
The Company has established several channels to communicate with the shareholders as follows:
1)

The Company communicates with the shareholders and the potential investors through various
channels, including financial reports (annual, half-yearly and quarterly reports), annual general
meetings and extraordinary general meetings, announcements and circulars;

2)

The Company will monitor and review regularly the process of its general meeting and, where
necessary, make appropriate changes to ensure that shareholders’ needs are best served;

3)

Board members, in particular, either the chairmen or deputy chairmen of Board committees or their
delegates, appropriate management executives and external auditors will attend annual general
meetings to answer the shareholders’ questions;

4)

Information published by the Company pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules will be made
available on the website of the Stock Exchange www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’s website
www.simplicityholding.com (such as its history and developments, products and services, awards
and achievements etc) to enable the shareholders and the potential investors to have better
understanding of the Company and its latest development;

5)

The Hong Kong share registrar of the Company serves the shareholders in respect of share
registration, dividend payment and related matters.

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and enhancing communication with the existing
shareholders and potential investors. It welcomes suggestions from investors, stakeholders and the
public. Enquiries to the Board or the Company may be sent by post to the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong.
Since 26 February 2018 (being the “Listing Date”), there was no change to the Company’s Articles of
Association.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT
The Company does not have an internal audit department and is currently of the view that there is
no immediate need to set up an internal audit department within the Group in light of the size, nature
and complexity of the business of the Group. The Board has overall responsibility for formulation and
overseeing the implementation of the internal control measures and effectiveness of risk management
system, which is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of objectives,
safeguard assets against unauthorised use or misappropriation, ensure maintaining proper accounting
records for the provision of reliable financial information for internal use or publication, execution with
appropriate authority and to ensure compliance of the relevant laws and regulations. The internal control
system of the Group aims to facilitate effective and efficient operation which in turn minimises the risks
to which the Group is exposed. The Board understands that no one system will preclude all errors and
irregularities.
The Board reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s material internal controls and considers the Group’s
internal control system is designed to manage reasonable assurance against material misstatement
or loss and to manage and eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and fulfillment of business
objective. The system includes a defined management structure with segregation of duties. The Board
is of the view that the resources for and qualifications of staff of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function are adequate and sufficient. Based on information furnished to it and on its own
observations, the Board is satisfied with present internal controls of the Group.
The Company maintains a framework for the handling and dissemination of inside information and
the disclosure policy of the framework sets out the procedures and internal controls to ensure inside
information remains confidential until such information is appropriately disclosed and the announcement
of such information is made in a timely manner in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Directors are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
The responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.
In preparing the financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022, the Directors are
responsible for maintaining proper accounting records which reflect with reasonable accuracy the state of
affairs, operating results, cash flows and equity movement of the Group at any time. The Directors confirm
that the preparation of the financial statements of the Group is in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards.
The Directors also confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, information and belief, having made all
reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
The Group’s independent external auditor is Elite Partners CPA Limited (“Elite Partners”). The
remuneration for the audit and non-audit services provided by Elite Partners to the Group during the year
ended 31 March 2022 was approximately as follows:
Type of Services

Amount
HK$’000

Audit
Non-audit services

600
–

Total

600

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Wong Chi Chiu Henry has resigned as company secretary with effect from 26 April 2022, and Mr.
Choi Pun Lap has been appointed since then. The role of the company secretary is to be responsible for
ensuring that Board’s procedures are followed and facilitating communications among Directors as well
as with shareholders and management. Both Mr. Wong and Mr. Choi confirmed that they have taken no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the year ended 31 March 2022, which met the
requirements of Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.

DIVIDEND POLICY
The Company has adopted a dividend policy on 31 December 2018 which sets out the principles and
measures on how the Company may propose a dividend.
The Board will take into account the following factors when considering the payment of dividends:
(a)

the Company’s actual and expected financial performance;

(b)

retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Group;

(c)

the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, return on equity and the relevant financial covenants;

(d)

any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by the Group’s contracting parties;

(e)

the Group’s expected working capital requirements and future expansion plans;

(f)

general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s business and other internal or external
factors that may have an impact on the business or financial performance and position of the
Company; and

(g)

any other factors that the Board may deem appropriate.

Any declaration and payment of future dividends under the dividend policy will be subject to the Board’s
determination that the same would be in the best interests of the Group and the shareholders of the
Company as a whole. In addition, the declaration and payment of dividends may be subject to legal
restrictions or any applicable laws, rules and regulations and the Articles of Association of the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary general meeting
To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution is proposed for each issue at
shareholder meetings, including the election of individual directors.
All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the GEM Listing
Rules and poll results will be posted on the website of the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely
manner after each shareholder meeting.
Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company which provides the extraordinary general meetings
should be convened on the requisition of one or more members holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at the times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or
the Secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
(2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board
shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may at any time make a request for the Company’s information to the extent such
information is publicly available to the company secretary of the Company who is responsible for
forwarding communications relating to matters within the Board and communication relating to ordinary
business matters, such as suggestions, inquiries and consumer complaints, to the chief executive officer.

Putting forward proposals at a general meeting
Shareholders are welcomed to put forward proposals relating to the operations and management of the
Group to be discussed at shareholders’ meetings. The proposals shall be sent to the company secretary
of the Company by a written requisition. Shareholders who wish to put forward a proposal should convene
an extraordinary general meeting by following the procedures set out in “Procedures for shareholders to
convene an extraordinary general meeting” above.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
The Company has not made any significant change to its constitutional documents during the year. A
consolidated version of the Company’s constitutional documents is available on the Company’s website
and the website of the Stock Exchange.

CONCLUSION
The Company believes that good corporate governance could ensure an effective distribution of the
resources and shareholders’ interests. The senior management will continue endeavors in maintaining,
enhancing and increasing the Group’s corporate governance level and quality.
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The Directors of the Company are pleased to present their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of its subsidiaries
are set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements. The principal activities of the Group are
restaurant operations.

BUSINESS REVIEW
The business review of the Group, including a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing
by the Group, an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s business, and an analysis using
financial key performance indicators is set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 10 to 16 of this Annual Report. Those discussions form part of this Directors’ Report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022 and the financial position of the Group as at
that date is set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 54 to 56.
The Directors did not recommend the payment of any dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March
2022.
As at the date of this report, the Board is not aware of any shareholders who have waived or agreed to
waive any dividends.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group is set out on page 126 of
the Annual Report.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
The shares of the Company were listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange on the Listing Date. Saved as
disclosed in the paragraph headed “2020 Placing” below, there has been no change in the capital
structure of the Group since then. The capital of the Group only comprised of ordinary shares.

Financial Resources and Liquidity
As at 31 March 2022, current assets amounted to approximately HK$65.7 million (as at 31 March
2021: approximately HK$53.9 million), of which approximately HK$31.9 million (as at 31 March 2021:
approximately HK$12.8 million) was bank balances and cash, approximately HK$31.7 million (as at 31
March 2021: approximately HK$9.2 million) was trade and other receivables, deposits and prepayments.
The Group’s current liabilities amounted to approximately HK$39.5 million (as at 31 March 2021:
approximately HK$35.9 million) which primarily consisted of bank borrowings, trade and other payables,
contract liabilities and lease liabilities. Current ratio (calculated based on the total current assets divided
by total current liabilities) and quick ratio (calculated based on the total current assets less inventories
divided by total current liabilities) were 1.7 and 1.6 respectively (as at 31 March 2021: 1.5 and 1.5
respectively).
Gearing ratio is calculated based on the borrowings representing the sum of interest-bearing bank
borrowings and amounts due to related parties which are non-trade nature divided by total equity at the
end of the year and multiplied by 100%. Gearing ratio was 0% (as at 31 March 2021: 38.7%).
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FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND CAPITAL ASSETS
Save as disclosed in the Prospectus and in this Annual Report, the Group did not have other plans for
material investments or capital assets as of 31 March 2022.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note
15 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are set out in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES
Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 57 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
As at 31 March 2022, the Company had distributable reserves of approximately HK$33.2 million (as at 31
March 2021: HK$29.2 million).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS
No director or a connected entity of a director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
Apart from as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations” below, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their respective spouse or children
under 18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of the
Company’s subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” below, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2022.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME
The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme conditionally approved
and adopted in compliance with Chapter 23 of the GEM Listing Rules by the written resolutions of our
shareholders passed on 29 January 2018. The following summary does not form, nor is intended to be,
part of the Share Option Scheme nor should it be taken as affecting the interpretation of the rules of the
Share Option Scheme. In this paragraph “Options” means the options to be granted by our Company
pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Share Option Scheme.

(a) Purpose
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is for our Group to attract, retain and motivate talented
Participants (as defined in paragraph (b) below) to strive for future developments and expansion of
our Group. The Share Option Scheme shall be an incentive to encourage the Participants to perform
their best in achieving the goals of our Group and allow the Participants to enjoy the results of our
Company attained through their efforts and contributions.

(b) Scope of Participants and eligibility of Participants
The Board may, at its discretion, invite:
(i)

any executive or non-executive Director including any independent non-executive Director or
any employee (whether full-time or part-time) of any member of our Group;

(ii)

any trustee of a trust (whether family, discretionary or otherwise) whose beneficiaries or objects
include any employee or business associate of our Group;

(iii)

any adviser or consultant (in the areas of legal, technical, financial or corporate management)
to our Group;

(iv)

any provider of goods and/or services to our Group; or

(v)

any other person who the Board considers, in its sole discretion, has contributed to our Group
to take up Options (together, the “Participants”).

(c) Subscription price
The subscription price for the shares under the Share Option Scheme shall be a price determined by
the Board at its sole discretion and notified to the Participant and shall be no less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date on which an Option is granted; (ii) the average closing prices of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the 5 business days immediately preceding the date on
which an Option is granted; and (iii) the nominal value of a share on the date of the offer.

(d) Acceptance of an offer of Options
Offer of an Option shall be deemed to have been accepted by the grantee when the duplicate of the
relevant offer letter comprising acceptance of the Option duly signed by the grantee together with
a remittance in favour of our Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof, is
received by our Company within 28 days from the date of the offer.
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(e) Maximum number of shares available for subscription

(f)

(i)

Subject to (iv) below, the total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
Options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
our Company shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of the shares in issue as
at the Listing Date, unless our Company obtains an approval from its shareholders pursuant to
(ii) below.

(ii)

Subject to (iv) below, our Company may seek approval from its shareholders in general meeting
for refreshing the 10% limit set out in (i) above such that the total number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all Options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of our Company under the limit as refreshed shall not exceed 10%
of the total number of the shares in issue as at the date of approval to refresh such limit.

(iii)

Subject to (iv) below, our Company may seek separate approval from our shareholders
in general meeting for granting Options beyond the 10% limit provided that the Options
granted in excess of such limit are granted only to the Participants are specially approved
by the shareholders in general meeting and the Participants are specifically identified by our
Company before such approval is sought. In such case, our Company shall send a circular to
our shareholders containing the information required under the GEM Listing Rules.

(iv)

Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Share Option Scheme, the maximum number of
shares in respect of which Options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme together
with any options outstanding and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of our Company must not exceed 30% (or such higher percentage
as may be allowed under the GEM Listing Rules) of the total number of shares in issue from
time to time. No Options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme or any other share
option schemes of our Company if this will result in such limit being exceeded.

Maximum entitlement of shares of each Participant
(i)

Subject to paragraph (ii) below, the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the Options granted to each Participant (including both exercised, cancelled and
outstanding Options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of Shares
in issue.

(ii)

Notwithstanding (i) above, any further grant of Options to a Participant in excess of the 1%
limit shall be subject to approval by our Shareholders in general meeting with such Participant
and his or her close associates (or his or her associates if such Participant is a connected
person) abstaining from voting. The number and the terms of the Options to be granted to
such Participant shall be fixed before our Shareholders’ approval and the date of the Board
meeting for proposing such further grant should be taken as the date for grant for the purpose
of calculating the subscription price.
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(g) Grant of Options to connected persons
(i)

Any grant of Options to a Participant who is a Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of our Company or their respective associates must be approved by our
independent non-executive Directors (excluding independent non-executive Director who is the
Participant).

(ii)

Where any grant of Options to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
Director, or any of their respective associates, and such Option which if exercised in full, would
result in the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all Options granted and to be
granted (including Options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to him or her in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such grant:
(1)

representing in aggregate more than 0.1% of the relevant class of securities of our
Company in issue on the date of such grant; and

(2)

having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the shares as at the date of
such grant, in excess of HK$5 million, such proposed grant of Options must be approved
by our Shareholders in general meeting. In such a case, our Company shall send a
circular to our Shareholders containing all those terms as required under the GEM Listing
Rules. The Participant concerned, his or her associates and all core connected persons
of our Company must abstain from voting at such general meeting (except where any
core connected person intends to vote against the relevant resolution provided that
such intention to do so has been stated in the circular). Any vote taken at the meeting to
approve the grant of such Options must be taken on a poll.

(h) Restrictions on the time of grant of Options
Our Company shall not grant any Options after inside information has come to its knowledge until
it has announced the information. In particular, it shall not grant any Option during the period
commencing one month immediately before the earlier of:
(i)

the date of the board meeting (as such date is first notified to the Stock Exchange under the
GEM Listing Rules) for approving our Company’s results for any year, half-year or quarter-year
period or any other interim period (whether or not required under the GEM Listing Rules); and

(ii)

the deadline for our Company to announce its results for any year, half year or quarter-year
period under the GEM Listing Rules or any other interim period (whether or not required under
the GEM Listing Rules), and ending on the date of the results announcement.

Where the grantee is a Director, no Option shall be granted:

40

(i)

during the period of 60 days immediately preceding the publication date of the annual results
or, if shorter, the period from the end of the relevant financial year up to the publication date of
the results; and

(ii)

during the period of 30 days immediately preceding the publication date of the quarterly results
and half-year results or, if shorter, the period from the end of the relevant quarterly or half-year
period up to the publication date of the results.
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(i)

Exercise of Options
An Option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme and such
other terms and conditions upon which an Option was granted, at any time during the option period
after the Option has been granted by the Board but in any event, not longer than 10 years from the
date of grant. An Option shall lapse automatically and not be exercisable (to the extent not already
exercised) on the expiry of the option period.

(j)

Duration of the Share Option Scheme
The Share Option Scheme will remain valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing on
the date on which the Share Option Scheme is adopted, after which period no further Options will be
granted but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall in all other respects remain in full force
and effect and Options which are granted during the life of the Share Option Scheme may continue
to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue.

Further details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the section headed “Statutory and General
Information — D. Other Information — 1. Share Option Scheme” in Appendix V of the Prospectus.
For the year ended 31 March 2022, no share option was granted, exercised, expired or lapsed and there
is no outstanding share option under the Share Option Scheme.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Details of the significant related party transactions entered by the Group during the year ended 31
March 2022 are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements. To the best knowledge of
the Directors, none of these related party transactions constitute connected transactions that need to be
disclosed under the GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this Annual Report are as follows:

Executive Directors
Ms. Wong Suet Hing (Chairlady)
Ms. Wong Sau Ting Peony
Mr. Wong Chi Chiu Henry (resigned on 30 June 2022)
Mr. Choi Pun Lap (appointed with effect from 26 April 2022)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Ms. Ng Yau Kuen Carmen (resigned on 27 July 2021)
Mr. Yu Ronald Patrick Lup Man (resigned on 19 August 2021)
Mrs. Cheung Lau Lai Yin Becky (resigned on 19 January 2022)
Mr. Lo Cheuk Fei Jeffrey (appointed on 27 July 2021)
Mr. Yeung Man Sun (appointed on 19 August 2021)
Mr. Chan Wai Pun (appointed on 19 January 2022)
Mr. Wong Hoyen Pegasus (appointed on 17 May 2022)
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Pursuant to article 84 of the Articles of Association, one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire
from office by rotation and re-election at an annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with
the Company’s Articles of Association, providing that every Director shall be retired at least once every
three years.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors
Each of our executive Directors has entered into a service agreement with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 29 January 2018 and shall continue thereafter unless terminated by not less than
three months’ notice in writing served by either party.
Each of our independent non-executive Director has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from the Listing Date, which may be terminated by not
less than three months’ notice in writing served by either party.
None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.
The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of Directors are set out in the
Articles of Association. The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition
and making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-election of Directors and succession
planning for Directors.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION
The Company has received confirmation from each of the INEDs regarding his independence in
accordance with Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and therefore considers each of them to be
independent.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in
notes 11 and 12 to the consolidated financial statements.
The remuneration of the senior management of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022 falls within
the following band:

Remuneration band
Up to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,000 to up to HK$1,500,000
Above HK$1,500,000
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the Directors and the Senior Management of the Group are set out on pages 17 to
19 of this Annual Report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed during the year ended 31 March 2022.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED
SECURITIES
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year ended 31 March 2022.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS
As at 31 March 2022, the interests and short positions of the Directors and the chief executives of
the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions in which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or which were
required pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register maintained by the Company
referred to therein; or which were required pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

Long position in the shares of the associated corporation of the Company

Name of Director

Name of
associated
corporation

Capacity/nature

Ms. SH Wong
Ms. ST Wong

MJL
MJL

Beneficial interest
Beneficial interest

No. of shares
held in the
associated
corporation

% of
shareholding in
the associated
corporation

620
374

30.24%
18.24%

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, none of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company had any interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions in which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or which were required pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
maintained by the Company referred to therein; or which were required pursuant to the Rules 5.46 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY
So far as known to the Directors or chief executive of the Company, as at 31 March 2022, the following
persons/entities (other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company) had or were deemed to
have an interest or a short position in the shares or the underlying shares of the Company which would
be required to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept under section 336 of the
SFO, or who were directly or indirectly, to be interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of
share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the Company or any other
member of the Group:

Long positions in the shares of the Company

Name

Capacity/nature

No. of
shares held

Approximate %
of shareholding

MJL (Note 1)

Beneficial Interest

480,000,000

50.0%

Note:
(1)

MJL is owned as to (i) 30.24% by Ms. SH Wong; (ii) 30.24% by Ms. LF Chow; (iii) 18.24% by Ms. ST Wong; (iv) 14.64% by Ms.
SC Wong; (v) 4.20% by Mr. SH Ma; and (vi) 2.44% by Linking World Limited. Ms. SH Wong and Ms. ST Wong being our executive
Directors, are also directors of MJL.

Long positions in other members of our Group

Name
Linking World Limited

Name of member
of our Group
Capacity/nature
All Happiness
Limited

Beneficial interest

No. of
shares held

Approximate %
of shareholding

1,000

10%

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, none of the substantial or significant shareholders or
other persons, other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company whose interests are set out in
the section headed “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations” above, had or were deemed to
have an interest or a short position in the shares or the underlying shares of the Company which would
be required to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept under section 336 of the
SFO, or who were directly or indirectly, to be interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of
share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the Company or any other
member of the Group.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS
As far as the Director is aware of, the Group has complied in material respects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and operation of the Group. During the year,
there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
Due to the nature of our Group’s business, majority of our customers consist of walk-in customers from
the general public. As such, the Directors consider that it is not practicable to identify the five largest
customers of the Group, and the Group did not rely on any single customers.
The aggregate purchase attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
40.2% of our total purchases of raw materials and consumables consumed. During the same year,
purchases from our largest supplier accounted for approximately 11.1% of our total purchases of
materials and consumables.
None of the Directors or any of their close associates or shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of
the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) has any beneficial interest in the
Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

BORROWING
As at 31 March 2022, there was no bank borrowings outstanding (31 March 2021: approximately HK$15.0
million).

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the
Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float as required under the GEM Listing Rules
during the year and up to the date of this Annual Report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive or similar rights under the Company’s Articles of Association and
the laws of Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
the existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF
The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to Shareholders by reason of their holdings
in the Shares.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION
A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors is currently in force and has been in force
since 26 February 2018. The Company has taken on and maintained appropriate insurance cover in
respect of potential legal actions against the Directors.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES
A remuneration committee was set up for reviewing the Group’s emolument policy and structure for
all remuneration of the directors and senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance of the directors and senior management and comparable market
practices.
As at 31 March 2022, the Group had 95 full-time and 60 part-time employees (as at 31 March 2021:
170 full-time and 68 part-time employees). Total staff costs (including Directors’ emoluments) were
approximately HK$32.6 million for the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021: HK$42.0 million). Details of the
emoluments of the Directors, and five highest paid individuals during the year ended 31 March 2022 are
set out in note 11 and 12 to the consolidated financial statements.
Employees’ remuneration is commensurate with their job nature, qualifications and experience. Salaries
and wages are normally reviewed annually based on performance appraisals and other relevant factors.
The Group continues to offer competitive remuneration packages and bonus to eligible staff, based on the
performance of the Group and the individual employee.

ENVIRONMENTAL, POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE
The Group is committed to providing an environmental friendly culture and atmosphere within the Group.
The Group has undertaken environmental protection measures such as (i) reduction of use of papers; (ii)
minimisation of electricity consumption outside business hours; and (iii) recycling of waste cooking oil.
As a responsible corporation, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the Group has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations regarding environmental protection during the year ended 31 March 2022. A
separate environmental, social and governance report is expected to be published on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company no later than five months after the end of the financial year.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS, CUSTOMERS AND OTHER
STAKEHOLDERS
The Group understands that the success of the Group’s business depends on the support from its key
stakeholders, including employees, customers, suppliers, banks, regulators and shareholders. The Group
will continue to ensure effective communication and maintain good relationship with each of its key
stakeholders.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
In order to establish entitlements to attend and vote at the forthcoming AGM, the register of members
of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 13 September 2022 to Friday, 16 September 2022, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of the shares will be registered. In order to establish
entitlements to attend and vote at the forthcoming AGM, shareholders are reminded to ensure that all
completed share transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17/F, Far East
Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 9 September 2022.
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DONATIONS
No charitable donation made by the Group during the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021: Nil).

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
During the year, the Company was not engaged in any litigation or arbitration of material importance and
no litigation or claim of material importance is known to the Directors to be pending or threatening against
the Company.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
Detail is set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance practices. Information
on the corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 20 to 35 of this annual report.
The compliance officer and company secretary of the Company is Mr. Choi Pun Lap. His biographical
details are set out on page 17 of this annual report.

AUDITOR
Elite Partners CPA Limited (“Elite Partners”) was appointed as the auditor of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2022. The accompanying financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs
have been audited by Elite Partners. Elite Partners shall retire at the AGM and, being eligible, will
offer itself for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Elite Partners and to authorise the
Directors to fix its remuneration will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

PUBLICATION OF INFORMATION ON WEBSITES
This annual report is available for viewing on the website of Stock Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk and on
the website of the Company at www.simplicityholding.com.
On behalf of the Board

WONG Suet Hing
Chairlady
Hong Kong, 12 August 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SIMPLICITY HOLDING LIMITED
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Simplicity Holding Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 54 to 125, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued
by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants”
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

48

SIMPLICITY HOLDING LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
KEY AUDIT MATTERS
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment
At 31 March 2022, the carrying amounts of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment were HK$27
million, represented approximately 26% of the total
assets of the Group. They entirely relate to the
cash generating units (“CGUs”) of the restaurant
operations in Hong Kong.
Management is required to perform impairment
assessment on where indicators of impairment
are identified, on these assets. For the purpose
of assessing impairment, these assets were
allocated to CGUs, and management has assessed
the recoverable amount of these assets based
on higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal. In carrying out the impairment
assessment, significant management judgement
was used to appropriately identify CGUs and to
determine the key assumptions and estimations.
We identified the impairment assessment of
property, plant and equipment as a key audit
matter due to the significance of the balance to the
consolidated financial statements combined with
the significant judgements and estimations involved
in the impairment assessment.

Our audit procedures in relation to the
management’s impairment assessment of property,
plant and equipment included the following:
•

We assessed the appropriateness of the
management’s identification of CGUs based
on our understanding of the Group’s business;

•

We assessed the valuation methodologies
applied;

•

We assessed the appropriateness of key
assumptions, inputs and estimates used in
the valuation such as market comparables,
and compared them to market information and
based on our industry knowledge;

•

We checked the arithmetical accuracy of
calculations; and

•

We discussed and evaluated management’s
identification of indicators of potential
impairment.
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Business combination
During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group
acquired 100% of entire equity in Lucky State.
Investment Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
(“Lucky State Group”). Upon the completion of
acquisition, the Group recognised contingent
consideration of approximately HK$4,670,000.

Our audit procedures in relation to the business
combination included the following:
•

We obtained and reviewed related acquisition
agreement to understand the background and
the related important information;

The Group engaged an independent external valuer
to assess the fair values of the acquired identifiable
net assets and the contingent considerations for the
acquisition at the acquisition date.

•

We assessed the objectivity, capabilities and
competence of the independence external
valuer engaged by the Group;

•

We checked the arithmetical accuracy of the
calculations underlying the purchase price
allocation; and

•

We discussed with management and
independent external valuer engaged by
the Group in relation to the methodology,
basis and assumptions used in arriving at
the forecasts (e.g. estimated growth rate
and discount rate etc.) to see whether the
methodology and assumptions used were
reasonable and appropriate.

We identified the business combination as a
key audit matter because of the complexity and
significant degree of management judgment
involved in the measurement of the fair values
of the acquired identifiable net assets and the
determination of the fair value of contingent
consideration at the acquisition date.
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OTHER INFORMATION
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company are responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed term of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional reference judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
–

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

–

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

–

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

–

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

–

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

–

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions
taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Chan Wai Nam,
William with Practising Certificate Number P05957.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong
12 August 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Notes
Revenue
Other income
Other gains and losses, net
Raw materials and consumables used
Staff costs
Depreciation
Rental and related expenses
Utilities expenses
Other expenses
Reversal of impairment of interest in an associate
Finance costs

6
7
7

17
8

Profit before tax
Income tax credit

9
10

85,585
2,007
19,535
(31,777)
(32,605)
(15,046)
(4,266)
(3,783)
(14,641)
–
(1,080)

2021
HK$’000
97,421
15,688
3,534
(29,205)
(42,027)
(24,681)
(3,772)
(4,979)
(14,474)
13,505
(2,275)

3,929
91

8,735
16

Profit for the year

4,020

8,751

Profit for the year attributable to:
– owners of the Company
– non-controlling interests

4,007
13

8,585
166

4,020

8,751

4,020

8,751

24

–

4,044

8,751

4,031
13

8,585
166

4,044

8,751

0.42

0.99

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income:
Item that may be reclassified to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to:
– owners of the Company
– non-controlling interests

Earnings per share
Basic (HK cents)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2022

2022
HK$’000

2021
HK$’000

26,580
95
4,367

42,207
95
3,936

31,042

46,238

18

1,811

1,724

19

31,702
329
31,903
–

9,179
345
12,811
29,860

65,745

53,919

7,382
20,952
–
11,172
–
–
–

8,376
108
220
11,984
–
15,000
260

Total current liabilities

39,506

35,948

Net current assets

26,239

17,971

Total assets less current liabilities

57,281

64,209

596
1,575
12,319

687
1,776
22,999

Total non-current liabilities

14,490

25,462

Net assets

42,791

38,747

Notes
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Deferred tax assets
Deposits

15
29
19

Total non-current assets
Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables, deposits and
prepayments
Tax recoverable
Bank balances and cash
Asset held for sale

20
21

Total current assets
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables and accruals
Contract liabilities
Provision for reinstatement
Lease liabilities
Contingent consideration
Bank borrowings
Liability directly associated with asset held for sale

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Provision for reinstatement
Lease liabilities

22
23
25
26
27
24
21

29
25
26
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AS AT 31 MARCH 2022

2022
HK$’000

2021
HK$’000

9,600
33,224

9,600
29,193

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

42,824
(33)

38,793
(46)

Total equity

42,791

38,747

Notes
Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

28

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
on 12 August 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

Wong Suet Hing
Director
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Wong Sau Ting Peony
Director

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Attributable to owner of the Company
Foreign
currency
translation
reserve Accumulated
(note (c))
losses
HK$’000
HK$’000

Total
HK$’000

Noncontrolling
interests
HK$’000

Total
equity
HK$’000

(59,104)

21,889

9

21,898

–
–
–

8,585
–
–

8,585
8,319
–

166
–
(88)

8,751
8,319
(88)

–

–

–

–

(133)

(133)

88,381

(8,669)

–

(50,519)

38,793

(46)

38,747

–

–

–

24

4,007

4,031

13

4,044

9,600

88,381

(8,669)

24

(46,512)

42,824

(33)

42,791

Share
capital
HK$’000

Share
premium
(note (a))
HK$’000

Other
reserves
(note (b))
HK$’000

As at 1 April 2020
Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year
Placing of shares
Dividend paid
Derecognition of non-controlling interest
upon disposal of subsidiary

8,000

81,662

(8,669)

–

–
1,600
–

–
6,719
–

–
–
–

–

–

As at 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021

9,600

Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year
As at 31 March 2022
Notes:
(a)

As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, share premium is the excess of the proceeds received over the nominal value of the shares of the
Company issued at a premium, less the amount of expenses incurred in connection with the issue of the shares were listed on
GEM of the Stock Exchange in previous years.

(b)

As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, other reserves represented the difference between the aggregated capital of subsidiaries arising
from the group reorganisation and the shareholders’ contribution arising from the acquisition of additional interest in subsidiaries
in previous years.

(c)

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies set out in Note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

2022
HK$’000

2021
HK$’000

3,929

8,735

7
8

(8)
1,080

–
2,275

9
9
7
7
31

4,262
10,784
(560)
–
(3,757)
(50)
(421)
(13,055)
534

Notes
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Bank interest income
Finance costs
Depreciation:
– owned property, plant and equipment
– leased right-of-use assets
Rent concession
Gain on early termination of leases
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Gain on disposal of an associate
Reversal of provision of reinstatement
Gain on disposal of asset held for sale
Loss on written-off of property, plant and equipment
Provision for impairment of property,
plant and equipment
Provision for impairment of goodwill arising from
acquisition of subsidiaries
Fair value change of contingent consideration
Provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables
Wavier of other payable
Reversal of interest in an associate
Operating cash flows before movements in working
capital
Increase in inventories
Increase in trade and other receivables, deposits and
prepayments
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables and
accruals
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities
Cash generated from operation
Tax refund
NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
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25
7
7

8,847
15,834
(1,589)
(3,202)
(429)
–
(430)
1,686
–

7

1,711

–

7
7

92
(4,670)

–
–

7
7

1,941
(1,043)
–

–
–
(13,505)

769
(86)

18,222
(167)

(6,751)

(3,422)

276
6,790

(5,241)
(116)

998
16

9,276
77

1,014

9,353

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Notes
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Repayment from an associate
Net cash inflow/(outflow) on disposal of subsidiaries
Net cash inflow on acquisition of subsidiaries
Net cash inflow on disposal of associate
Net proceed from disposal of asset held for sales
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Interest received

17
31
30

NET CASH GENERATED FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of bank borrowings
Interest paid
Proceed from placing of new shares
Repayment of principal portion of lease liabilities
Repayment of interest portion of lease liabilities
Dividend distribution to non-controlling interests
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF
THE YEAR
Exchange of foreign exchange rate changes, net
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE
YEAR, REPRESENTED BY BANK BALANCES AND
CASH

2022
HK$’000

2021
HK$’000

–
3,552
463
50
41,592
(47)
8

15,005
(21)
–
–
–
(231)
–

45,618

14,753

(15,000)
(46)
–
(11,487)
(1,034)
–

(5,857)
(396)
8,319
(14,381)
(1,879)
(88)

(27,567)

(14,282)

36

19,065

9,824

12,811
27

2,987
–

31,903

12,811
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1.

GENERAL INFORMATION
The Company was incorporated and registered as an exempted company with limited liability in
the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands on 27 January
2017 and its shares were listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 26 February 2018. The address of the Company’s registered office and the principal
place of business is disclosed in the Corporate Information section to the annual report.
Its immediate holding company is Marvel Jumbo Limited (“MJL”), a private limited company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) with limited liability. MJL is 30.24% owned by Ms.
Wong Suet Hing (“Ms SH Wong”), 30.24% owned by Ms. Chow Lai Fan (“Ms. LF Chow”), sister-in-law
of Ms SH Wong, 18.2% owned by Ms. Wong Sau Ting Peony (“Ms. ST Wong”), daughter of Ms SH
Wong, 15% owned by Ms. Wong Suet Ching (“Ms. SC Wong”), sister of Ms. SH Wong, and 4.2%
owned by Mr. Ma Sui Hong (“Mr. SH Ma”), the son of Ms. Wong Shuet Ying (“Ms. SY Wong”), sister of
Ms. SH Wong.
The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in restaurant operations and sales of food ingredients in Hong Kong and sales of drug vending
machines and related services in PRC. Details are set out in note 40.

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(a) Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current year
In the current year, the Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time, which
are mandatorily effective for the annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:
Amendment to HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 16

Covid-19-Related Concessions beyond 30 June 2021
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

The application of amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on
the Group’s financial positions and performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
(b) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective:
Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after
HKFRS 17

Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments
Amendments to HKFRS 3
Reference to the Conceptual
Framework
Amendments to HKFRS 10
Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and HKAS 28
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture
Amendments to HKAS 1
Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)
Amendments to HKAS 16
Property, Plant and Equipment
— Proceeds before Intended Use
Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies
HKFRS Practice Statement
2
Amendments to HKAS 8
Definition of Accounting Estimates
Amendments to HKAS 12
Deferred Tax Related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction
Amendments to HKAS 37
Oneros Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract
Amendments to HKFRSs
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018–2020

1 January 2023
1 January 2022
A date to be
determined
1 January 2023

1 January 2022
1 January 2023

1 January 2023
1 January 2023

1 January 2022
1 January 2022

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below, the Directors anticipate that
the application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
(b) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Continued)
(a)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework
The amendments:
–

update a reference in HKFRS 3 Business Combinations so that it refers to the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 issued in June 2018 (the
“Conceptual Framework”) instead of Framework for the Preparation and Presentation
of Financial Statements (replaced by the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2010 issued in October 2010);

–

add a requirement that, for transactions and other events within the scope of HKAS
37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21
Levies, an acquirer applies HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 instead of the Conceptual
Framework to identify the liabilities it has assumed in a business combination; and

–

add an explicit statement that an acquirer does not recognise contingent assets
acquired in a business combination.

The Group will apply the amendments prospectively to business combinations for which
the date of acquisition is on or after the beginning of the first annual period beginning on
or after 1 April 2022.
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2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
(b) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Continued)
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)
The amendments provide clarification and additional guidance on the assessment of right to
defer settlement for at least twelve months from reporting date for classification of liabilities as
current or non-current, which:
•

•

specify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-current should be based
on rights that are in existence at the end of the reporting period. Specifically, the
amendments clarify that:
i.

the classification should not be affected by management intentions or expectations
to settle the liability within 12 months; and

ii.

if the right is conditional on the compliance with covenants, the right exists if the
conditions are met at the end of the reporting period, even if the lender does not test
compliance until a later date; and

clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in
its settlement by the transfer of the entity’s own equity instruments, these terms do not
affect its classification as current or non-current only if the entity recognises the option
separately as an equity instrument applying HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation.

In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 was revised as a consequence of the Amendments to
HKAS 1 to align the corresponding wordings with no change in conclusion.
Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at 31 March 2022, the application of the
amendments will not result in reclassification of the Group’s liabilities.
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting
Policies
HKAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the term “significant accounting policies” with
“material accounting policy information”. Accounting policy information is material if, when
considered together with other information included in an entity’s financial statements, it can
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements.
The amendments also clarify that accounting policy information may be material because
of the nature of the related transactions, other events or conditions, even if the amounts are
immaterial. However, not all accounting policy information relating to material transactions,
other events or conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses to disclose immaterial
accounting policy information, such information must not obscure material accounting policy
information.

2022 ANNUAL REPORT

63

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
(b) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Continued)
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting
Policies (Continued)
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements (the “Practice Statement”) is also
amended to illustrate how an entity applies the “four-step materiality process” to accounting
policy disclosures and to judge whether information about an accounting policy is material to
its financial statements. Guidance and examples are added to the Practice Statement.
The application of the amendments is not expected to have significant impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group but may affect the disclosures of the Group’s significant
accounting policies. The impacts of application, if any, will be disclosed in the Group’s future
consolidated financial statements.
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates
The amendments define accounting estimates as “monetary amounts in financial statements
that are subject to measurement uncertainty”. An accounting policy may require items in
financial statements to be measured in a way that involves measurement uncertainty — that
is, the accounting policy may require such items to be measured at monetary amounts that
cannot be observed directly and must instead be estimated. In such a case, an entity develops
an accounting estimate to achieve the objective set out by the accounting policy. Developing
accounting estimates involves the use of judgements or assumptions based on the latest
available, reliable information.
In addition, the concept of changes in accounting estimates in HKAS 8 is retained with
additional clarifications.
The application of the amendments is not expected to have significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
(a) Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to
as the “HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “GEM Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

(b) Basis of measurement
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except
contingent consideration that are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services.

(c) Functional and presentation currency
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$”) which is also
the functional currency of the Company. The some of the Company’s subsidiaries are operating
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) with RMB as their functional currency.

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Group.
Inter-company transactions and balances between group companies together with unrealised
profits are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.
The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition or up to the
dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation (Continued)
Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for using the acquisition method.
The cost of an acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value
of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the Group, as the
acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are principally measured
at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or losses are recognised
in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure the
non-controlling interests that represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary either
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
non-controlling interests are measured at fair value unless another measurement basis is
required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless they are incurred
in issuing equity instruments in which case the costs are deducted from equity.
Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date
fair value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised against goodwill only to
the extent that they arise from new information obtained within the measurement period (a
maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the acquisition date.
All other subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration classified as an asset or a liability
are recognised in profit or loss.
When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as
the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.
Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests at initial
recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to such non-controlling interests even if this results in those
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

(b) Fair Value
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless
of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.
In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in this Historical Financial Information is determined
on such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment”, leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17
“Leases”, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of
assets”.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(b) Fair Value (Continued)
In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into
Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:
•

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

•

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

•

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

(c) Subsidiaries
A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able to exercise control. The Company
controls an investee if all three of the following elements are present: power over the investee,
exposure, or has rights, to variable returns from the investee, and the ability to use its power to
affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate
that there may be a change in any of these elements of control.
In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for the Company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable.

(d) Investment in associates
An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.
The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the associate. When the Group’s share of losses of
an associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(d) Investment in associates (Continued)
An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the investment
is acquired.
The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that the interest in an associate
may be impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated
to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.
When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate, it is accounted for as
a disposal of the entire interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the former associate and the retained
interest is a financial asset within the scope of HKFRS 9, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition. The difference between the carrying amount of the associate and the fair value of
any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of the relevant interest in the associate
is included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate on the same basis as would be required if that associate had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income by that associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity
to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant
associate.
The Group continues to use the equity method when an investment in an associate becomes
an investment in a joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in an
associate. There is no remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(d) Investment in associates (Continued)
When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate but the Group continues to use
the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that
had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in
ownership interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities.
When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the associate are recognised in the consolidated financial statements only
to the extent of interests in the associate that are not related to the Group.

(e) Non-current assets held for sale
Non-current assets (and disposal groups) are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount
will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This
condition is regarded as met only when the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate
sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such
asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly probable. Management must be committed to
the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one
year from the date of classification.
When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all of
the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest
in the relevant subsidiary after the sale.
When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving disposal of an investment, or a portion
of an investment in an associate, the investment or the portion of the investment that will be
disposed of is classified as held for sale when the criteria described above are met, and the
Group discontinues the use of the equity method in relation to the portion that is classified as
held for sale from the time when the investment (or a portion of the investment) is classified as
held for sale.
Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured at the
lower of their previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, which continue to be
measured in accordance with the accounting policies as set out in respective sections.

2022 ANNUAL REPORT

69

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

4.	SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(f)

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment, including right-of-use assets arsing from leased building
where the Group is not the registered owner of the property interest, are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.
The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its purchase price and the costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised
as an expense in profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to write off their cost or valuation net of
expected residual value over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The estimated
useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at the end of each reporting period. The useful lives are as follows:
Leasehold land and buildings
Leasehold improvements
Furniture and fixtures
Kitchen equipment
Other equipment

Over
Over
Over
Over
Over

the
the
3–
3–
3–

shorter of the terms of the lease or 50 years
lease terms
5 years
5 years
5 years

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if its carrying amount is higher
than the asset’s estimated recoverable amount. The gain or loss on disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment is the difference between the net sale proceeds and its carrying
amount, and is recognised in profit or loss on disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(g) Leases
Definition of a lease
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of initial application of HKFRS 16
or arising from business combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains
a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or acquisition
date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and conditions
of the contract are subsequently changed. As a practical expedient, leases with similar
characteristics are accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group reasonably expects that
the effects on the consolidated financial statements would not differ materially from individual
leases within the portfolio.
The Group as a lessee
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to leases land and buildings
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. It also applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.
Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:
•

the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

•

any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

•

any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

•

an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in dismantling and removing the
underlying assets, restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities other than adjustments to lease
liabilities resulting from Covid-19-related rent concessions in which the Group applied the
practical expedient.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(g) Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)
Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.
The Group presents right-of-use assets in “property, plant and equipment”, the same line item
within which the corresponding underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.
Refundable rental deposits
Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at
fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
Lease liabilities
At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and measures the lease
liability at the present value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
The lease payments include:
•

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable;

•

variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;

•

amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual value guarantees;

•

the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise the
option; and

•

payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising an option to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by interest accretion and lease
payments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(g) Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)
The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related
right-of-use assets) whenever:
•

the lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of exercise of a
purchase option, in which case the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

•

the lease payments change due to changes in which cases the related lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the consolidated statement of
financial position.
Covid-19-related rent concessions
In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct consequence of the Covid-19
pandemic, the Group has elected to apply the practical expedient not to assess whether the
change is a lease modification if all of the following conditions are met:
•

the change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease that is
substantially the same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change;

•

any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before 30
June 2022; and

•

there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for changes in lease payments resulting
from rent concessions the same way it would account for the changes applying HKFRS 16 if the
changes are not a lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver of lease payments are accounted
for as variable lease payments. The related lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the amounts
forgiven or waived with a corresponding adjustment recognised in the profit or loss in the
period in which the event occurs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments
(i)

Financial assets
A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component)
is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the transaction price.
All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade
date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the period generally established by regulation or convention in the market
place.
Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirely when
determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.
Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The Group
classifies its debt instruments in below measurement category:
Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective
interest rate method. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.
Equity instruments
On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group could
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in other
comprehensive income. This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.
Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income are measured at
fair value. Dividend income are recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend income
clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investments. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive income and are not reclassified to profit
or loss. All other equity instruments are classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”), whereby changes in fair value, dividends and interest income are
recognised in profit or loss.
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(h) Financial instruments (Continued)
(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
The Group recognises loss allowances for ECL on trade receivables and financial assets
measured at amortised cost. The ECLs are measured on either of the following bases: (1)
12 months ECLs: these are the ECLs that result from possible default events within the
12 months after the reporting date: and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from
all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The maximum
period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.
ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is
then discounted at an approximation to the assets’ original effective interest rate.
The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for trade receivables using HKFRS
9 simplified approach and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.
For other instruments, the ECLs are based on the 12-months ECLs. However, when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the allowance will be based
on the lifetime ECLs.
When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information analysis, based on the Group’s
historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking
information.
The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it
is more than 30 days past due.
The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-impaired when: (1) the borrower is
unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to
actions such as realising security (if any is held); or (2) the financial asset is more than 90
days past due.
Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is calculated based on the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset. For non
credit-impaired financial assets interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount.
Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables are considered on a collective basis taking
into consideration past due information and relevant credit information such as forwardlooking macroeconomic information.
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(h)	Financial instruments (Continued)
(ii)	Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
For collective assessment, the Group takes into consideration the following characteristics
when formulating the grouping:
•

Past-due status;

•

Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

•

External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the constituents of each
group continue to share similar credit risk characteristics.
(iii) Write-off policy
The gross carrying amount of financial assets is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.
Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.
(iv) Contract liabilities
A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received consideration from the customer.
For a single contract with a customer, either a net contract asset or a net contract liability
is presented. Contracts assets and contract liabilities arising from unrelated multiple
contracts are not presented on a net basis.
(v)

Financial liabilities
The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending on the purpose for which the
liabilities were incurred. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value and financial liabilities at amortised costs are initially measured at
fair value, net of directly attributable costs incurred.
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and other payables and accruals
and bank borrowings, are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The related interest expense is recognised in profit or loss.
Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the amortisation process.
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(h)	Financial instruments (Continued)
(v)	Financial liabilities (Continued)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.
Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss if the following criteria are met: (i) the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring the
liabilities or recognising gains or losses on them on a different basis; (ii) the liabilities are
part of a group of financial liabilities which are managed and their performance evaluated
on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management strategy; or (iii)
the financial liability contains an embedded derivative that would need to be separately
recorded.
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise.
(vi) Effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial asset or
liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period.
(vii) Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.
(viii) Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the future
cash flows in relation to the financial asset expire or when the financial asset has been
transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in accordance with
HKFRS 9.
Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the relevant contract
is discharged, cancelled or expires.
Where the Group issues its own equity instruments to a creditor to settle a financial
liability in whole or in part as a result of renegotiating the terms of that liability, the equity
instruments issued are the consideration paid and are recognised initially and measured
at their fair value on the date the financial liability or part thereof is extinguished. If the fair
value of the equity instruments issued cannot be reliably measured, the equity instruments
are measured to reflect the fair value of the financial liability extinguished. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability or part thereof extinguished and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss for the year.
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(Continued)

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of inventories are
determined on a first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all costs necessary to make the sale. Costs necessary to make the
sale include incremental costs directly attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs which
the Group must incur to make the sale.

(j)

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of goods or services is
transferred to the customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue from restaurant operation is recognised at a point in time when the food and catering
service have been served, and customer payments are made to the Group upon completion of
catering service.
Revenue from sales of food ingredients is recognised at the point that the control of the
inventory have passed to the customers, which is primarily upon the acceptance of the goods
by the customers. The customers have full discretion over the goods, and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customers’ acceptance of the products.
Principal versus agent
When another party is involved in providing goods or services to a customer, the Group
determines whether the nature of its promise is a performance obligation to provide the
specified goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to arrange for those goods or
services to be provided by the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).
The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or service before that good or service
is transferred to a customer.
The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to arrange for the provision of the
specified good or service by another party. In this case, the Group does not control the
specified good or service provided by another party before that good or service is transferred
to the customer. When the Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in the amount of any
fee or commission to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging for the specified
goods or services to be provided by the other party.
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(k) Retirement benefits costs
(i)

Short term employee benefits
Short term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits)
that are expected to be settled wholly before twelve months after the end of the annual
reporting period in which the employees render the related service. Short term employee
benefits are recognised in the year when the employees render the related service.

(ii)

Defined contribution retirement plan
The Group contributes to a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefits scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance for all employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees' relevant income and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
in the MPF Scheme.
Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to make
contribution to the MPF Scheme at 5% of the employees' relevant income subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the MPF Scheme vest
immediately.
The employees of the Company's subsidiaries which operate in the People's Republic
of China (“PRC") are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of its payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme. The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed in the central pension scheme The Group has no forfeiture of pension
scheme contributions (i.e. contributions processed by the employer on behalf of the
employee who has exited the scheme prior to vesting of such contributions). As at 31
March 2022, no forfeited contribution under the pension scheme of the Group is available
for deduction of contribution payable in coming years.
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(k) Retirement benefits costs (Continued)
(iii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.

(l)

Share-based payments
Where share options are awarded to employees and others providing similar services, the fair
value of the options at the date of grant is recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period
with a corresponding increase in the employee share option reserve within equity. Non-market
vesting conditions are taken into account by adjusting the number of equity instruments
expected to vest at the end of each reporting period so that, ultimately, the cumulative amount
recognised over the vesting period is based on the number of options that eventually vest.
Market vesting conditions are factored into the fair value of the options granted. As long as
all other vesting conditions are satisfied, a charge is made irrespective of whether the market
vesting conditions are satisfied. The cumulative expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve a
market vesting condition.
Where the terms and conditions of options are modified before they vest, the increase in the fair
value of the options, measured immediately before and after the modification, is also charged
to the statement of comprehensive income over the remaining vesting period.

(m) Income taxes
Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred tax.
Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary activities adjusted for items that are
non-assessable or disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used
for tax purposes. Except for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to the expected manner in which the
carrying amount of the asset or liability is realised or settled and that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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(m) Income taxes (Continued)
Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income in which case the taxes are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or when they relate to items recognised directly in equity in which case
the taxes are also recognised directly in equity.

(n) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

(o) Provisions
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, which will probably result in
an outflow of economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the existence of
which will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events,
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.

(p) Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability is a present obligation arising. from past events but is not recognised
because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation.
Where the Group is jointly and severally liable for an obligation. the part of the obligation that is
expected to be met by other parties is treated as a contingent liability and it is not recognised
in the consolidated financial statements.
The Group assesses continually to determine whether an out flow of resources embodying
economic benefits has become probable. If it becomes probable that an outflow of future
economic benefits will be required for an item previously dealt with as a contingent liability, a
provision is recognised in the consolidated financial statements in the reporting period in which
the change in probability occurs. except in the extremely rare circumstances where no reliable
estimate can be made.

(q) Segment reporting
The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment information based on the
regular internal financial information reported to the executive directors for their decisions
about resources allocation to the Group’s business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business components in the internal financial
information reported to the executive directors are determined the Group’s service lines stated
in note 6.
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(q) Segment reporting (Continued)
The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting segment results under HKFRS 8 are
the same as those used in its financial statements prepared under HKFRSs, except interest
income, unallocated finance costs, and unallocated corporate expenses, which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating segment, are not included in arriving at
the operating results of the operating segment.

(r)

Impairment of assets (other than financial assets)
At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of the following
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:
•

property, plant and equipment;

•

intangible asset; and

•

investments in subsidiaries and an associate.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use) of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under another HKFRS.
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised as income immediately.
Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset
or cash generating unit, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset or cash generating unit.

(s) Government grants
Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant
relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

82

SIMPLICITY HOLDING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

4.	SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(t)

(Continued)

Foreign currencies
In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included
in profit or loss for the year.
For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities
of the Group’s foreign operations are translated into the presentation currency (i.e. HK$) of the
Group at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (the
foreign currency translation reserve).

(u) Related parties
(a)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Group if that person:
(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii)

has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii)

is a member of key management personnel of the Group.
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(u)	Related parties (Continued)
(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions apply:
(i)

The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(ii)

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii)

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv)

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(v)

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of the employees of the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi)

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.
Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:
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(i)

that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(ii)

children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(iii)

dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic partner.
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results differ from these
estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.
The following is the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of each reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within the next financial year.

Estimation of useful lives and impairment of property, plant and equipment
The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives and depreciation method in
determining the related depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment. This estimate is
based on the management’s experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment
of similar nature and functions. Management of the Group will accelerate the depreciation charge
where the economic useful lives are shorter than previously estimated due to removal or closure
of restaurants. The management of the Group will also write-off or write-down the carrying value of
the items which are technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned. Actual
economic useful lives may differ from estimated economic useful lives.
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Impairment testing of property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets)
The Group determines whether property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) are
impaired when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying values of these assets exceed their recoverable amounts, which is the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair values
less costs of disposal is based on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value-in-use calculations are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
In addition, management of the Group assesses impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment may
not be recoverable. When the recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment differ from
the original estimates, adjustment will be made and recognised in the period in which such event
takes place. As at 31 March 2022, the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment are
approximately HK$26,580,000 (2021: HK$42,207,000).

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate
The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an
incremental borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that
the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have to pay”, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into
financing transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of
the lease (for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group
estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and is
required to make certain entity specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit
rating).
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Principal versus agent consideration (agent)
The Group is considered as an agent for its contracts with customers relating to the sales of
food ingredients as the Group did not obtain the control over food ingredients before passing
on to customers. When the Group satisfies the performance obligation, the Group recognises a
commission revenue in the amount it expects to be entitled as specified in the contracts, which
amounted to 17% of the gross amount of consideration as specified in the contracts. During the
year ended 31 March 2022, the Group recognised commission revenue relating to sales of food
ingredients amounted to HK$10,748,000 (2021: HK$1,841,000).

6.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
Revenue represents the amounts received or receivable from the operation of restaurants in Hong
Kong during the year.

Revenue
The amounts of each significant category of revenue recognised during the reporting period were
disaggregated as follows:
2022
HK$’000

2021
HK$’000

Revenue from restaurant operations
Sales of food ingredients

74,837
10,748

95,580
1,841

By timing of revenue recognition at a point in time

85,585

97,421

Segment revenue and results
Information reported to the management of the Group, being the chief operating decision maker
(“CODM”), for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses
on styles of cuisine serving by the Group’s restaurants to the customers.
Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments under HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” are as follows:
1.

Chinese cuisine — Operations of Chinese cuisine restaurants under the brand of “Marsino”.

2.

Thai cuisine — Operations of Thai cuisine restaurants under the brand of “Grand Avenue”.

3.

Malaysian cuisine — Operations of Malaysian cuisine restaurants under the brand of “Baba
Nyonya” and “Haha Prawn Mee”, “Haha Prawn Mee” were ceased to operate since 30 June
2019.

4.

Sales of food ingredients — Sales of food ingredients to external third parties.

5.

Sales of drug vending machines — Sales of drug vending machines in PRC (acquisition of
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March 2022, details please refer to note 30).
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Segment revenue and results (Continued)
No operating segments have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.
The accounting policies of the operating and reportable segments are the same as the Group’s
accounting policies described in note 4(q) to the consolidated financial statements.
Year ended 31 March 2022

Chinese
cuisine
HK$’000

Thai
cuisine
HK$’000

Malaysian
cuisine
HK$’000

Sales of food
ingredients
HK$’000

Sales of
drug vending
machines
HK$’000

Total
HK$’000

23,389

21,684

29,764

10,748

–

85,585

(465)

369

991

3,279

(2,532)

1,642

Segment revenue
Segment profit/(loss)
Unallocated other income
Unallocated finance costs
Unallocated corporate costs
Fair value change on contingent
consideration
Gain on disposal of asset held for sale
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

53
(46)
(19,202)
4,670
13,055
3,757

Profit before tax

3,929

Year ended 31 March 2021

Segment revenue
Segment profit/(loss)
Unallocated other income
Unallocated finance costs
Unallocated corporate costs
Reversal of impairment loss of interest
in an associate
Profit before tax

Chinese
cuisine
HK$’000

Thai
cuisine
HK$’000

Malaysian Sales of food
cuisine
ingredients
HK$’000
HK$’000

27,961

28,636

38,983

1,841

97,421

(625)

717

797

1,841

2,730

Total
HK$’000

14,540
(396)
(21,644)
13,505
8,735

Note: The operations of Japanese cuisine were ceased to operate since 28 June 2019 and no operation conducted during the
year ended 31 March 2021.
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6.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by operating and reportable
segment:
At 31 March 2022

Segment assets

Chinese
cuisine
HK$’000

Thai
cuisine
HK$’000

Malaysian
cuisine
HK$’000

11,251

6,547

12,377

Sales of
Sales
of food drug vending
machines Consolidated
ingredients
HK$’000
HK$’000
HK$’000
1,926

23,584

55,685

Unallocated property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets
Deferred tax assets
Unallocated inventories
Unallocated deposits, prepayments
and other receivables
Tax recoverable
Bank balances and cash

6,531
329
31,903

Consolidated assets

96,787

Segment liabilities
Unallocated trade and other payables
and accruals
Deferred tax liabilities
Consolidated liabilities

1,405
95
839

11,018

5,565

11,758

–

21,666

50,007

3,393
596
53,996
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6.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)
At 31 March 2021

Segment assets

Chinese
cuisine
HK$’000

Thai
cuisine
HK$’000

Malaysian
cuisine
HK$’000

Sales
of food
ingredients
HK$’000

Consolidated
HK$’000

15,746

12,075

21,063

1,963

50,847

Unallocated property, plant and
equipment
Deferred tax assets
Unallocated inventories
Unallocated other receivables and
prepayments
Tax recoverable
Bank balances and cash
Asset held for sale

1,012
95
743
4,444
345
12,811
29,860

Consolidated assets
Segment liabilities
Unallocated trade and other
payables and accruals
Bank borrowings
Deferred tax liabilities
Contract liabilities
Liabilities directly associated with
asset held for sale
Consolidated liabilities

100,157
14,407

9,789

17,827

–

42,023

3,332
15,000
687
108
260
61,410

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and allocating resources between segments:
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•

all assets are allocated to operating and reportable segments, other than certain property,
plant and equipment for corporate use, deferred tax assets, certain inventories, certain other
receivables and prepayments, amount due from an associate, amount due from a related party,
tax recoverable and bank balances and cash.

•

all liabilities are allocated to operating and reportable segments, other than certain trade and
other payables and accruals, bank borrowings, contingent consideration and deferred tax
liabilities.
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6.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Other segment information
Year ended 31 March 2022

Amounts included in the
measure of segment profit or
segment assets:
Additions of property, plant and
equipment
Gain on disposal of asset held for sale
Loss on written-off of property,
plant and equipment
Provision for impairment of property,
plant and equipment
Provision for impairment of goodwill
arising from acquisition of
subsidiaries
Provision for impairment of trade and
other receivables
Depreciation:
– owned property, plant and
equipment
– leased right-of-use assets

Sales of
Malaysian Sales of food drug vending
cuisine ingredients
machines
HK$’000
HK$’000
HK$’000

Chinese
cuisine
HK$’000

Thai
cuisine
HK$’000

–
–

–
–

21
–

–
–

534

–

–

–

–

–

Unallocated
HK$’000

Total
HK$’000

–
–

26
(13,055)

47
(13,055)

–

–

–

534

1,711

–

–

–

1,711

–

–

–

–

92

92

–

–

–

–

1,941

–

1,941

1,286
2,520

1,040
3,612

1,643
4,581

–
–

59
71

234
–

4,262
10,784

Year ended 31 March 2021

Amounts included in the
measure of segment profit or
segment assets:
Additions of property, plant and
equipment
Loss on written-off/disposal of
property, plant and equipment
Depreciation:
– owned property, plant and
equipment
– leased right-of-use assets

Thai cuisine
HK$’000

Malaysian
cuisine
HK$’000

Sales
of food
ingredients
HK$’000

Unallocated
HK$’000

Total
HK$’000

11

–

139

–

81

231

1,081

305

300

–

–

1,686

1,983
4,876

1,931
5,124

2,794
5,834

–
–

2,139
–

8,847
15,834

Chinese
cuisine
HK$’000
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6.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Geographical information
All of the Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong. Accordingly, the Group’s revenue from
external customers and all non-current assets are located in Hong Kong.

Information about major customers
No individual customer contributed over 10% of the total revenue of the Group for both years.

7.

OTHER INCOME/OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET

Other income
Reversal of provision for reinstatement
Reversal of employee injury provision
Employment support scheme (note (a))
Promotion income
Bank interest income
Subsidies income (note (b))
Others

Other gains and losses, net
Rent concession (note (c))
Gain on early termination of leases
Gain on disposal of asset held for sale
Loss of written-off of property, plant and equipment
Fair value change on contingent consideration
Gain on disposal of associate
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Provision for impairment for property, plant and equipment
Provision for impairment on goodwill arising from acquisition of
subsidiaries
Provision for impairment for trade and other receivables
Wavier of other payables
Others

2022
HK$’000

2021
HK$’000

421
–
–
26
8
1,400
152

430
750
11,334
178
–
2,670
326

2,007

15,688

560
–
13,055
(534)
4,670
50
3,757
(1,711)

1,589
3,202
–
(1,686)
–
–
429
–

(92)
(1,941)
1,043
678
19,535

–
–
–
–
3,534

Notes:
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(a)

Employment support scheme were granted from HKSAR Government in relation to the employment during COVID-19
without unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies attaching to the subsidies.

(b)

Subsidies income were granted from HKSAR Government in relation to the food license without unfulfilled conditions or
other contingencies attaching to the subsidies.

(c)

The rent concession had satisfied the practical expedient criteria of HKFRS 16 and the amount recognised in profit or loss
to reflect changes in lease payments that arised from COVID-19.
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8.

FINANCE COSTS

Interests on bank borrowings
Interests on lease liabilities

9.

2022
HK$’000

2021
HK$’000

46
1,034

396
1,879

1,080

2,275

2022
HK$’000

2021
HK$’000

31,128
1,477

40,141
1,886

32,605

42,027

600

650

4,262
10,784
1,711

8,847
15,834
–

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Profit before tax has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments):
Salaries and other benefits
Contribution to retirement benefit scheme

Auditor’s remuneration
Depreciation:
– owned property, plant and equipment
– leased right-of-use assets
Provision for impairment of property, plant and equipment
Provision for impairment for goodwill arising from acquisition
of subsidiaries
Fair value change on contingent consideration
Provision for impairment of trade and other receivables
Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of lease
liabilities:
– short-term lease expenses
– contingent rents (note)

92
(4,670)
1,941

1,752
43

–
–
–

1,473
–

Note: The lease payments for certain restaurants are determinated as the higher of a fixed rental or a predeterminated
percentage on revenue of respective restaurants pursuant to the terms and conditions that are set out in the respective
rental agreements.
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10. INCOME TAX CREDIT

Current tax:
Hong Kong Profits Tax
Deferred tax

2022
HK$’000

2021
HK$’000

–
91

–
16

91

16

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Company Law of the Cayman Islands and accordingly, is not subject to income tax in the
Cayman Islands.
Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of Hong Kong Profits Tax, the first HK$2 million of
assessable profits of a qualifying corporation will be taxed at 8.25%, and assessable profits above
HK$2 million will continue to be taxed at 16.5%. For the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, Hong
Kong Profits Tax of the qualified entity of the Group is calculated in accordance with the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.
Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation
of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2021: 25%).
The income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the profit before tax in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

Profit before tax
Tax calculated at the domestic income tax rate of 16.5%
(2021: 16.5%)
Tax effect of expense not deductible for tax purpose
Tax effect of income not subject to tax
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised
Effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries operating in other
jurisdiction
Income tax credit

Details of deferred tax are set out in note 29.
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2022
HK$’000

2021
HK$’000

3,929

8,735

648
3,345
(5,869)
1,952
(209)

1,441
3,999
(4,539)
917
(1,802)

224

–
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to the directors, disclosed pursuant to the applicable GEM Listing
Rules and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, were as follows:
Year ended 31 March 2022
Ms. SH Wong Ms. ST Wong Mr. CC Wong
HK$’000
HK$’000
HK$’000
(note (a))
Executive directors:
Fees
Other emoluments
Salaries and other benefits
Discretionary bonus (note (a))
Retirement benefit scheme
contributions
Sub-total

Total
HK$’000

–

–

–

–

432
9

432
9

376
7

1,240
25

–

18

18

36

441

459

401

1,301

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services in connection with
management of the affairs of the Company and the Group.

Independent non-executive
directors:
Fees
Other emoluments
Salaries and other benefits
Retirement benefit scheme
contributions
Sub-total

Mrs.
Cheung
Lau Lai
Yin
Becky
HK$’000
(note (b))

Ms. Ng
Yau Kuen
Carmen
HK$’000
(note (c))

Mr. Yu
Ronald
Patrick
Lup Man
HK$’000
(note (d))

–

–

–

82

126

51

61

6

2

132

53

Mr. Lo
Cheuk Fei Mr. Yeung
Jeffrey
Man Sun
HK$’000
HK$’000
(note (e)) (note (f))

Mr. Chan
Wai Pun
HK$’000
(note (g))

Total
HK$’000

74

24

180

–

–

–

238

3

–

–

–

11

64

82

74

24

429

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services as
directors of the Company.
2022
HK$’000
Total

1,730
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)

Notes:
(a)

Mr. CC Wong was resigned as an executive director on 30 June 2022.

(b)

Mrs. Cheung Lau Lai Yin Becky was resigned as an independent non-executive director on 19 January 2022.

(c)

Ms. Ng Yau Kuen Carmen was resigned as an independent non-executive director on 27 July 2021.

(d)

Mr. Yu Ronald Patrick Lup Man was resigned as an independent non-executive director on 19 August 2021.

(e)

Mr. Lo Cheuk Fei Jeffrey was appointed as an independent non-executive director on 27 July 2021.

(f)

Mr. Yeung Man Sun was appointed as an independent non-executive director on 19 August 2021.

(g)

Mr. Chan Wai Pun was appointed as an independent non-executive director on 19 January 2022.

(h)

Mr. Wong Muk Fai Woody was resigned as an executive director on 24 September 2020.

(i)

Mr. Ma Sui Hong was resigned as an executive director on 9 February 2021.

Year ended 31 March 2021

Executive directors:
Fees
Other emoluments
Salaries and other benefits
Discretionary bonus (note (a))
Retirement benefit scheme
contributions
Sub-total
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Ms. SH
Wong
HK$’000

Ms. ST
Wong
HK$’000

Mr. MF
Wong
HK$’000
(note(h))

Mr. SH
Ma
HK$’000
(note(i))

Mr. CC
Wong
HK$’000
(note(a))

Total
HK$’000

–

–

–

–

–

–

405
15

405
15

187
–

292
15

357
15

1,646
60

–

18

9

15

17

59

420

438

196

322

389

1,765

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services in connection with
management of the affairs of the Company and the Group.

Independent non-executive
directors:
Fees
Other emoluments
Salaries and other benefits
Retirement benefit scheme
contributions
Sub-total

Mrs. Cheung
Lau Lai Yin
Becky
HK$’000
(note(b))

Ms. Ng
Yau Kuen
Carmen
HK$’000
(note(c))

Mr. Yu
Ronald
Patrick
Lup Man
HK$’000
(note(d))

35

35

35

105

93

93

93

279

5

5

5

15

133

133

133

399

Total
HK$’000

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services as
directors of the Company.
2021
HK$’000
Total

2,164

The emoluments paid or payable to the directors of the Company included the emoluments for
services as directors/employees of the group companies prior to becoming the directors of the
Company. The directors’ emoluments are for their services in connection to the management of the
affairs of the Company and the Group.
Note:
(a)

The discretionary bonus is determined by reference to their duties and responsibilities within the Group and the Group’s
performance.

No remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors of the Company as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of directors of the Company has
waived any remuneration during the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021.
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12. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year included three directors (2021: one
directors), details of whose remuneration are set out in note 11 above. Details of the remuneration
for the year ended 31 March 2022 of the remaining two (2021: four) highest paid employees who are
neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are as follows:

Salaries and other benefits
Discretionary bonus
Retirement benefit scheme contributions

2022
HK$’000

2021
HK$’000

915
–
35

1,968
45
70

950

2,083

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the directors of the Company whose
remuneration fell within the following band is as follows:

Nil to HK$1,000,000

2022
HK$’000

2021
HK$’000

2

4

13. DIVIDENDS
No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31 March 2022, nor has any dividend
been proposed since the end of reporting period (2021: nil).
There are no income tax consequences related the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to owners of the Company is based on
the following data:

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company for the
purpose of basic earnings per share

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for
the purpose of basic earnings per share

2022
HK$’000

2021
HK$’000

4,007

8,585

2022
’000

2021
’000

960,000

865,315

No diluted earnings per share were presented as there were no potential ordinary shares in issue for
both years.
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Leasehold land
and building
HK$’000

Leasehold
improvement
HK$’000

Furniture and
fixture
HK$’000

Kitchen
equipment
HK$’000

Other
equipment
HK$’000

Total
HK$’000

116,761
–
–
(40,286)
(17,078)

39,872
143
(10,992)
–
–

3,308
30
(789)
–
–

5,653
7
(1,177)
–
–

3,645
51
(586)
–
–

169,239
231
(13,544)
(40,286)
(17,078)

At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021
Additions
Acquisition of subsidiaries
Written-off
Transfer from asset held-for-sale
Exchange realignment

59,397
–
534
–
1,307
12

29,023
20
–
(12,593)
–
–

2,549
–
–
(902)
–
–

4,483
–
–
(1,351)
–
–

3,110
27
8
(2,209)
–
–

98,562
47
542
(17,055)
1,307
12

At 31 March 2022

61,250

16,450

1,647

3,132

936

83,415

DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2020
Provided for the year
Written-off/disposals
Transfer to asset held-for-sale
Early termination of leases

32,236
17,007
–
(10,478)
(9,704)

24,177
5,732
(9,545)
–
–

1,801
513
(668)
–
–

3,095
896
(1,114)
–
–

2,405
533
(531)
–
–

63,714
24,681
(11,858)
(10,478)
(9,704)

At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021
Provided for the year
Written-off
Transfer from asset held-for-sale
Impairment

29,061
10,784
–
244
–

20,364
3,274
(12,211)
–
1,711

1,646
319
(902)
–
–

2,877
584
(1,351)
–
–

2,407
85
(2,057)
–
–

56,355
15,046
(16,521)
244
1,711

At 31 March 2022

40,089

13,138

1,063

2,110

435

56,835

NET CARRYING AMOUNTS
At 31 March 2022

21,161

3,312

584

1,022

501

26,580

At 31 March 2021

30,336

8,659

903

1,606

703

42,207

COST
At 1 April 2020
Additions
Written-off/Disposal
Transfer to asset held-for-sale
Early termination of leases
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the management identified impairment indicator of certain
leasehold land and building, leasehold improvement, furniture and fixtures, kitchen equipment
and other equipment due to decline in performance in some restaurants of the Group. The Group
assessed the recoverable amounts of these property, plant and equipment allocated to their
respective CGUs and as a result the carrying amount of these property, plant and equipment were
written down to their recoverable amount. An impairment loss of approximately HK$1,711,000 (2021:
nil) was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
The recoverable amount of the CGU related to each restaurant has been determined based on value
in use calculations, which use cash flow projections based on the most recent financial forecasts
approved by the directors of the Company covering five-year period.
The key assumptions for the cash flow projections are those regarding the discount rates, annual
projected revenue over five-year period and growth rates. The Group estimates discount rates
used pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the CGUs. The annual projected revenue over five-year period and growth rates are
based on past performance and expectations of market development.
The key assumptions used for the cash flow projections of the CGU related to each restaurant in
2022 are (i) pre-tax discount rate of 10.8% (2021: 10.38%); (ii) growth rate of 2% (2021: 2%) and (iii)
recoverable amount of HK$22,914,000 (2021: HK$38,189,000).

16. GOODWILL
HK$’000
Cost:
At 1 April 2020, 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021
Arising from acquisition of subsidiaries

–
92

At 31 March 2022

92

Accumulated impairment:
At 1 April 2020, 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021
Impairment loss recognised

–
92

At 31 March 2022

92

Carrying amounts:
At 31 March 2022

–

At 31 March 2021

–

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition, to the cash generated units
(“CGUs”) that are expected to benefit from that business combination.
For the year ended 31 March 2022, the management considers that the carrying amount of goodwill
should be fully impaired. This impairment loss has included in other gains and loss in consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE
2022
HK$’000

2021
HK$’000

Non-current asset
Interest in an associate
Investment in an associate
Impairment loss of investment in an associate

–
–

5
(5)

Interest in an associate

–

–

Movement in impairment of amount due from an associate
Opening balance
Reversal during the year (note)

–
–
–

13,505
(13,505)
–

Note: During the year, the Company has received the repayments of amount due from an associate for a total of HK$15,505,000
in cash.

Details of the Group’s associate is as follows:
Name

Place of incorporation, operation and principle activity

Well Strong Holdings Limited

Cold storage in Hong Kong

For the year ended 31 March 2022
On 30 August 2021, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
agreement with an independent third party, to sell 50% equity interests in the
principally engaged in the cold storage business. The completion of the disposal
30 August 2021 and the Group ceases to hold any interest in the associate upon

sale and purchase
associate which is
has taken place on
the completion.
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17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

(Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of the associate is set out below.
2022
HK$’000

2021
HK$’000

At 31 March
Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

–
–
–
–

32,592
62,622
(132,374)
–

Net liabilities

–

(37,160)

Year ended 31 March
Revenue
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year

–
–

71,465
(18,107)

Included in the above amounts is:
Depreciation

–

51,072

2022
HK$’000

2021
HK$’000

1,811

1,724

18. INVENTORIES

Food and beverage for restaurant operations

102

SIMPLICITY HOLDING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
2022
HK$’000

2021
HK$’000

Trade receivables from sales of food ingredients
Trade receivables from restaurant operations
Rental deposits
Other deposits
Prepayments and other receivables (note)

1,164
683
3,653
1,465
29,104

1,303
766
4,060
2,109
4,877

Total

36,069

13,115

Analysed for reporting purposes as:
Non-current assets
Current assets

4,367
31,702

3,936
9,179

36,069

13,115

Note: The amount is mainly represented to the prepayment to suppliers of purchasing the drug vending machines during the
year ended 31 March 2022.

There was no credit period granted to individual customers for the restaurant operations. The
Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly by cash, octopus card and credit card
settlement. The settlement terms of octopus card and credit card companies are usually within 7
days after the service rendered date. All trade receivables from restaurant operations are aged
within 7 days after the service rendered date. All trade receivables from sales of food ingredients are
aged within 30 days base on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period.
Details of the impairment assessment of other receivables are set out in note 35.

20. BANK BALANCES AND CASH
Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and short term bank deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less which carry interest at prevailing market rate of 0.01%
(2021: 0.01%) per annum.

21. ASSET HELD FOR SALE
(a)

On 11 December 2020, the Group entered into a provisional sale and purchase agreement with
an independent third party to dispose of a wholly owned subsidiary, Access Gear Investment
Limited (“AGI”) and its subsidiaries (“AGI Group”) for a consideration of HK$21,500,000. The
major asset held by the AGI group is an industrial unit. The completion of the transaction is
scheduled to take place on 30 June 2021.

2022 ANNUAL REPORT

103

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

21. ASSET HELD FOR SALE
(b)

(Continued)

On 25 February 2021, the Group entered into a preliminary sale and purchase agreement with
an independent third party to dispose of a property for a consideration of HK$22,000,000. The
property is an industrial unit held by an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary. The transaction was
completed on 24 May 2021.
Accordingly, the following assets and liabilities are presented as a disposal group/assets held
for sale.
AGI Group Industrial unit
HK$’000
HK$’000
Asset held for sale
Leasehold land and buildings
Other assets

Liabilities directly associated with the assets
held for sale
Other payables, accrual and deposits
received

Total
HK$’000

19,802
52

10,006
–

29,808
52

19,854

10,006

29,860

(260)

–

(260)

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Trade payables
Salaries payables
Payable for acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Accruals and other payables

2022
HK$’000

2021
HK$’000

1,394
2,716
–
3,272

2,274
3,977
230
1,895

7,382

8,376

The credit period granted to the Group by suppliers normally ranges from 0 to 60 days. All trade
payables are aged within 60 days based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period.
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23. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Contract liabilities arising from:
Unredeemed cash coupons (note (a))
Receipt in advance of delivery of products (note (b))

2022
HK$’000

2021
HK$’000

–
20,952

108
–

20,952

108

Notes:
(a)

The balance represent the aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to the performance obligations that are
unsatisfied in relation to the unredeemed cash coupons outstanding as of the end of the reporting period. The Group
expects the transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied performance obligations to be recognised as revenue when the
related cash coupons are redeemed within one year.

(b)

The amount represents advances from customers include the non-refundable payment received from customers, for which
the Group has obligation to transfer goods or services to customers.

Movements in contract liabilities
2022
HK$’000
At 1 April
Increase in contract liabilities
Decrease in contract liabilities
Expiration of cash coupons

108
20,952
(108)
–

At 31 March

20,952

2021
HK$’000
224
2,636
(2,712)
(40)
108

The following table shows the revenue during the year related to contract liabilities carried forward:

Revenue recognised in contract liabilities at 1 April
– Cash coupons

2022
HK$’000

2021
HK$’000

108

244

The following table shows unsatisfied performance obligations as at the end of the year resulting
from sales of cash coupons.

Expected to be recognised within one year
– Cash coupons
– Sales of drug vending machine

2022
HK$’000

2021
HK$’000

–
20,952

108
–
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24. BANK BORROWINGS

Bank loans, do not contain repayment on demand clause
repayable within one year

2022
HK$’000

2021
HK$’000

–

15,000

The bank borrowings are at floating rate which carry interest at HK$ Best Lending Rate minus a
spread. The effective interest rate on the Group’s bank borrowings were 1.90% per annum as at 31
March 2021.
At 31 March 2021, bank borrowings of HK$15,000,000 were secured by leasehold land and building
owned by the Group with the carrying amount of HK$29,790,000 and corporate guarantee provided
by the Group’s companies.

25. PROVISION FOR REINSTATEMENT
HK$’000
At 1 April 2020
Reversal of provision

2,426
(430)

At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021
Reversal of provision

1,996
(421)

At 31 March 2022

1,575

Analysed for reporting purpose as:
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

2022
HK$’000

2021
HK$’000

1,575
–

1,776
220

1,575

1,996

The provision for reinstatement works related to the estimated cost of reinstating the rented premises
to be carried out at the end of respective lease periods. These amounts have not been discounted
for the purpose of measuring the provision for reinstatement works as the effect is not significant.
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26. LEASE LIABILITIES
HK$’000
At 1 April 2020
Early termination of leases
Interest expenses
Lease payments
Rent concession

61,529
(10,576)
1,879
(16,260)
(1,589)

At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021
Acquisition of subsidiaries
Interest expenses
Lease payments
Rent concession
Exchange realignment

34,983
541
1,034
(12,521)
(560)
14

At 31 March 2022

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

23,491
2022
HK$’000

2021
HK$’000

11,172
12,319

11,984
22,999

23,491

34,983

2022
HK$’000

2021
HK$’000

11,172
9,325
2,994

11,984
11,056
11,943

23,491

34,983

Present value of minimum lease payments

Within one year
More than one year, but not later than two years
More than two years, but not later than five years

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities was 3.41% (2021:
3.50%).
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26. LEASE LIABILITIES

(Continued)

Total minimum lease payments
2022
HK$’000

2021
HK$’000

Within one year
More than one year, but not later than two years
More than two years, but not later than five years
More than five years

11,830
9,597
3,056
–

13,016
11,693
12,248
–

Less: total future interest expenses

24,483
(992)

36,957
(1,974)

23,491

34,983

2022
HK$’000

2021
HK$’000

–

–

27. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION

Current

HK$’000
At 1 April 2021
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 30)
Fair value change (note)
At 31 March 2022

–
4,670
(4,670)
–

Note:
During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group entered into the agreement for the acquisition of 100% equity interest of Lucky
State Investment Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Lucky State Group”) (the “Agreement”). The face value of promissory
note as consideration was HK$58,000,000 and issued by the Company.
Pursuant to the Agreement, the profit guarantee for the Lucky State Group’s profit before tax for the period from 1 January 2021
to 31 December 2021 (the “first relevant period”) and the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022 (the “second relevant
period”) shall not be less than HK$5,700,000 and HK$16,150,000 respectively. (Details please refer to note 30).
With the clause of profit guarantee in accordance with the Agreement, the Company has appointed an independent professional
valuer to assess the fair value, as a result of profit guarantee for the first relevant period and the second relevant period on 30
August 2021 and 31 March 2022 respectively. The fair value of the contingent consideration was approximately HK$4,670,000
and HK$nil on 30 August 2021 and 31 March 2022 respectively and such fair value change of the contingent consideration of
approximately HK$4,670,000 was recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2022.
The fair value of the contingent consideration was determined by an independent professional valuer not connected with the
Group by using the probabilistic approach.
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28. SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the Company’s shares are disclosed as follows:
Number of
shares

Share
Capital
HK$’000

2,000,000,000

20,000

Issued and fully paid:
At 1 April 2020
Placing of shares (note)

800,000,000
160,000,000

8,000
1,600

At 31 March 2021, 1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022

960,000,000

9,600

Authorised:
At 1 April 2020, 31 March 2021, 1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022

Note: On 16 October 2020, the Company entered into the placing agreement with a placing agent pursuant to which the placing
agent has agreed, as agent of the Company, to procure to not less than six places to subscribe for up to 160,000,000
placing shares at the placing price of HK$0.052 per placing share. The placing of shares was completed on 2 November
2020.

29. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS)/LIABILITIES
The following are the major deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised and movements thereon
during the current and prior years.
Acceleration
accounting
depreciation
HK$’000

Acceleration
tax
depreciation
HK$’000

Total
HK$’000

At 1 April 2020
Charge to profit or loss

(95)
–

703
(16)

608
(16)

At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021
Credit to profit or loss

(95)
–

687
(91)

592
(91)

At 31 March 2022

(95)

596

501

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting purposes:
2022
HK$’000
Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities

2021
HK$’000

(95)
596

(95)
687

501

592

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses of approximately HK$44,169,000
(31 March 2021: HK$33,606,000) available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of such losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The
tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.
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30. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
On 4 August 2021, the Group entered into agreement for acquisition of entire equity in Lucky State
Investment Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (“Lucky State Group”), which is principally engaged
in sales of drug vending machines and related services in PRC. The acquisition of Lucky State
Group was completed on 30 August 2021. The face value of promissory note as consideration was
HK$58,000,000 was issued by the Company as consideration.
The Company has issued the three (3) years five (5) % interest per annum promissory note with the
face value of HK$58,000,000 to the vendor.
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Lucky State Group as the date of acquisition
are as follow,
HK$’000
Property, plant and equipment
Prepayment and other receivables (note (a))
Cash and bank balances
Contract liabilities
Lease liabilities

542
18,168
463
(14,054)
(541)

Total identifiable net assets
Goodwill

4,578
92

Consideration was satisfied by the fair value of:
Contingent consideration (note (b))

4,670

Net cash inflow from acquisition of business
Cash and bank balances

463

Notes:
(a)

Other receivables acquired in this acquisition was the same as the related gross contractual amount and the best estimate
at acquisition date of the contractual cash flows expected to be collected.

(b)

Contingent consideration payable arising from business combination are initially and subsequently measured at fair value,
with changes in fair values in subsequent accounting periods being recognised in profit or loss.
According to the sale and purchase agreement of the acquisition of Lucky State Group, there was a profit guarantee
pursuant to which the vendor guarantees to the Group that the profit before tax of Lucky State Group for the first relevant
period and the second relevant period are not less than HK$5,700,000 and HK$16,150,000 respectively (“Guaranteed
Profits”). If the actual profit before tax for a relevant period is less than 5% or more of the guaranteed profit for the
relevant period, the Vendor shall settle the Purchaser a compensation equivalent to 2.5 times the shortfall, by way of
set off against the outstanding principal amount of the Promissory Note. If the actual profit before tax shall be negative,
it shall be deemed to be zero. During the reporting period, the actual profit of Lucky State Group has not been met for
the first relevant period. With the clause of profit guarantee in accordance with the sale and purchase agreement of the
acquisition of Lucky State Group, as mentioned in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements, the fair value of the
promissory note was approximately HK$4,670,000 on 30 August 2021 and was recognised as contingent consideration by
the Company. Further details of contingent consideration are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.
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30.	ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Goodwill arose in these acquisitions because the cost of the combination included a control
premium. In addition, the consideration paid for the combination effectively included amounts in
relation to the benefits of expected synergies, revenue growth, future market development and the
assembled workforce of acquired businesses. These benefits are not recognised separately from
goodwill because they do not meet the recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets.
None of the goodwill arising on these acquisitions is expected to be deductible for tax purposes.
Had these business been consolidated on 1 April 2021, the Group’s revenue and loss for the year
would have been approximately HK$Nil and HK$2,138,000 respectively. The directors consider
these “pro-forma” numbers to represent an approximate measure of the performance of the
combined Group on an annualised basis and to provide a reference point for comparison in future
periods.
In determining the “pro-forma” revenue and loss for the year, the directors have calculated
depreciation of property, plant and equipment acquired on the basis of the fair values arising in the
initial accounting for the business combination rather than the carrying amounts recognised in the
pre-acquisition financial statements.

31. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
For the year ended 31 March 2022
(i)

Access Gear Investment Limited
On 30 June 2021, the Group disposed of its entire equity interest in Access Gear Investment
Limited, at an aggregate cash consideration of HK$21,500,000. The disposal of Access Gear
Investment Limited was completed on 30 June 2021 and upon the completion of disposal,
Access Gear Investment Limited ceased to be a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group. The net
assets of the Group is as follow:
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was lost:
HK$’000
Deposits
Bank balances and cash
Other payables

22
17,948
(227)
17,743

Analysis of gain or loss on disposal:
Cash consideration received
Net assets of subsidiaries being disposed
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the disposal:
Cash consideration received
Bank balances and cash being disposed
Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries

21,500
(17,743)
3,757

21,500
(17,948)
3,552
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31.	DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2021
(i)

Art Capital Limited
On 1 April 2020, the Group disposed of its entire equity interest in Art Capital Limited, at an
aggregate cash consideration of HK$1. The disposal of Art Capital Limited was completed
on 1 April 2021 and upon completion of the disposal, Art Capital Limited ceased to be a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group. The net liabilities disposed of are as follows:

(ii)

Glory Fine Corporation Limited
On 23 February 2021, the Group disposed of its entire equity interest in Glory Fine Corporation
Limited, at an aggregate cash consideration of HK$1. The disposal of Glory Fine Corporation
Limited was completed on 23 February 2021 and upon completion of the disposal, Glory Fine
Corporation Limited ceased to be a subsidiary of the Group which the group held 54% of equity
interest. The net asset disposed of are as follows:
Glory Fine
Corporation
Limited
HK$

112

Art
Capital
Limited
HK$

Total
HK$

Analysis of assets and liabilities over
which control was lost:
Other receivables
Bank balances and cash
Tax recoverable
Other payables

260
10
73
(53)

–
11
13
(610)

260
21
86
(663)

Net assets/(liabilities) disposed of

290

(586)

(296)

Analysis of gain or loss on disposal:
Cash consideration received or to be
received
Net (asset)/liabilities disposed of
Non-controlling interest

–
(290)
133

–
586
–

–
296
133

Gain/(loss) on disposal of subsidiaries

(157)

586

429

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the disposal:
Cash consideration received or to be
received
Cash and bank balances disposed

–
10

–
11

–
21

Net cash outflow of cash and
cash equivalents

10

11
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
The Company’s share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was approved and adopted in
compliance with Chapter 23 of the GEM Listing Rules by the written resolutions of the shareholders
passed on 29 January 2018. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is for the Group to attract,
retain and motivate talented Participants (as defined below) to strive for future developments and
expansion of the Group.
The board of directors (the “Board”) may, at its discretion, invite:
•

any executive or non-executive director including any independent non-executive director or
any employee (whether full-time or part-time) of any member of the Group;

•

any trustee of a trust (whether family, discretionary or otherwise) whose beneficiaries or objects
include any employee or business associate of the Group;

•

any adviser or consultant (in the areas of legal, technical, financial or corporate management)
to the Group;

•

any provider of goods and/or services to the Group; or

•

any other person who the Board considers, in its sole discretion, has contributed to the Group
to take up options (together, the “Participants”).

The subscription price for the shares under the Share Option Scheme shall be a price determined by
the Board at its sole discretion and notified to the Participant and shall be no less than the highest
of the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date on which an option is granted, the average closing prices of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the 5 business days immediately preceding the date on which
an option is granted and the nominal value of a share on the date of the offer.
Offer of an option shall be deemed to have been accepted by the grantee when the duplicate of the
relevant offer letter comprising acceptance of the option duly signed by the grantee together with
a remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof, is
received by the Company within 28 days from the date of the offer.
An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme and such
other terms and conditions upon which an option was granted, at any time during the option period
after the option has been granted by the Board but in any event, not longer than 10 years from the
date of grant. An option shall lapse automatically and not be exercisable (to the extent not already
exercised) on the expiry of the option period.
The Share Option Scheme will remain valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing on
the date on which the Share Option Scheme is adopted, after which period no further options will be
granted but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall in all other respects remain in full force
and effect and options which are granted during the life of the Share Option Scheme may continue to
be exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue.
During the year ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, no share option was granted, exercised, expired or
lapsed and there is no outstanding share option under the Share Option Scheme.
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33. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES
The Group participate in a Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes (the “MPF Scheme”) registered
with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in funds under the control of an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and
its employees are both required to make contributions to the MPF Scheme at rates specified in the
rules. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make the required
contributions. Except for voluntary contribution, no forfeited contribution under the MPF Scheme is
available to reduce the contribution payable in future years. The cap of contribution amount was
HK$1,500 per employee per month.
The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC are members of retirement benefits
schemes operated by the PRC government. The relevant PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute
defined percentages, ranging from 12% to 25%, of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to
fund the benefits in compliance with the applicable regulations of the PRC.
The retirement benefits contributions arising from the relevant schemes charged to the consolidated
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income represent contributions paid or payable
to the funds by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.
The contributions paid and payable to the schemes by the Group are disclosed in note 9.

34. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.
The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes bank borrowings and contingent
consideration as disclosed in respective note, and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, other reserves and accumulated profits.
The directors of the Company reviews the capital structure regularly. As part of this review, the
directors of the Company considers the cost of capital and the risk associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors of the Company, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, issuance of new shares and the raise of
borrowings or the repayment of the existing borrowings.
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
– Trade and other receivables and deposits
– Bank balances and cash

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
– Trade and other payables and accruals
– Lease liabilities
– Bank borrowings

2022
HK$’000

2021
HK$’000

16,597
31,903

11,751
12,811

48,500

24,562

7,382
23,491
–

8,367
34,983
15,000

30,873

58,350

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group’s financial instruments include trade and other receivables and deposits, bank
balances and cash, trade and other payables and accruals, bank borrowings and contingent
consideration. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. Management of the Group manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
Interest rate risk
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank balances
(note 20) and bank borrowings (note 24). The Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policy. The management of the Group monitors the Group’s exposure on ongoing
basis and will consider hedging interest rate risk should the need arises.
The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of prevailing
market interest rates arising from the Group’s bank balances and prime rate arising from the
Group’s variable-rate bank borrowings.
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for
its variable-rate bank borrowings. The analysis is prepared assuming the variable-rate bank
borrowings at the end of each reporting period were outstanding for the whole year and
50 basis points increase or decrease are used. The bank balances are excluded from the
sensitivity analysis as the management of the Group considers that the interest rate fluctuation
is not significant.
If interest rates have been 50 basis points higher/lower for variable-rate bank borrowings and
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2021
would increase/decrease by HK$750,000.
Credit risk and impairment assessment
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other receivables and deposits and
bank balances.
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge the obligations by counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated statements of financial
position at the end of each reporting period.
The credit risk for bank balances is considered as not material as such amounts are placed in
banks with good reputations.
The Group has concentration of credit risk on bank. Details of bank balances is disclosed
in note 20. The management of the Group considers the counterparties with good credit
worthiness based on their past repayment history and subsequent settlement.
The credit risk on other financial assets are limited because the counterparties are
creditworthiness and have a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term.
For other receivables, the management makes periodic individual assessment on the
recoverability of other receivables based on historical settlement records, past experience, and
also quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information. The management believes that there is no significant increase in credit risk of
these amounts since initial recognition and the Group provided impairment based on 12-month
ECL (“12m ECL”). For the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, the Group assessed the
ECL for other receivables. An allowance of credit loss of other receivables amounting to
approximately HK$1,941,000 (2021: HK$nil) was provided during the year ended 31 March
2022.
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35.	FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(b)	Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment comprises the following categories:
Internal credit rating

Description

Trade receivables

Other financial assets

Low risk

The counterparty has a low risk of default and
does not have any past-due amounts
Debtor frequently repays after due dates but
usually settle in full
There have been significant increases in credit
risk since initial recognition through information
developed internally or external resources
There is evidence indicating the asset is
credit-impaired
There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in
severe financial difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery

Lifetime ECL – not credit-impaired

12m ECL

Lifetime ECL – not credit-impaired

12m ECL

Lifetime ECL – not credit-impaired

Lifetime ECL – not creditimpaired

Lifetime ECL – credit-impaired

Lifetime ECL – credit-impaired

Amount is written off

Amount is written off

Watch list
Doubtful

Loss
Write-off

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group’s financial assets, which are
subject to ECL assessment:

Financial assets at amortised cost

External credit
rating

Internal credit
rating

12m or lifetime
ECL

Other receivables

N/A

(note)

12m ECL

2022 Gross
carrying amount
HK$’000

2021 Gross
carrying amount
HK$’000

6,972

3,513

Note:
For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group uses past due information to assess whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition.

2022

Other receivables

Past due
HK$’000

Not past due/
No fixed
repayment
terms
HK$’000

Total
HK$’000

—

5,006

5,006

Past due
HK$’000

Not past due/
No fixed
repayment
terms
HK$’000

Total
HK$’000

–

3,513

3,513

2021

Other receivables

The following tables show reconciliation of loss allowances that has been recognised for other
receivables.
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35.	FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(b)	Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Other receivables
12m ECL
HK$’000
–

As at 1 April 2020, 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021
Changes due to financial instruments recognised as at 1 April 2021:
Impairment losses recognised
Exchange adjustments

1,941
25

As at 31 March 2022

1,966

Liquidity risk
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level of bank
balances and cash deemed adequate by management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of unexpected fluctuations in cash flows.
The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative
financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.
Specially, bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included in the earliest
time band regardless of the probability of the banks choosing to exercise their rights.
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are
floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the end of each reporting
period.
Liquidity tables

As at 31 March 2022
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and other payables and
accruals
Lease liabilities

As at 31 March 2021
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and other payables and
accruals
Lease liabilities
Bank borrowings

Weighted
average
effective
interest
rate
%

Repayable
on demand
HK$’000

Within
1 year
HK$’000

1 to 5 years
HK$’000

–
3.41

–
–

7,382
11,830

–
–

–
12,651

7,382
24,481

7,382
23,491

–

19,212

–

12,651

31,863

30,873

Weighted
average
effective
interest
rate
%

Repayable
on demand
HK$’000

Within
1 year
HK$’000

1 to 5 years
HK$’000

Over 5 years
HK$’000

Total
undiscounted
cash flows
HK$’000

Total
carrying
amount
HK$’000

–
3.50
1.90

–
–
–

8,367
13,016
15,000

–
23,941
–

–
–
–

8,367
36,957
15,000

8,367
34,983
15,000

–

36,383

23,941

–

60,324

58,350

Total
undiscounted
cash flows
Over 5 years
HK$’000
HK$’000

Total
carrying
amount
HK$’000

The aggregate carrying amount of these bank borrowings were approximately HK$nil (2021:
HK$15,000,000).
Management of the Group considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the Historical Financial Information approximate their
fair values.
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35.	FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(c) Fair value and fair value hierarchy
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated statement of financial position
of the Group approximate their fair values due to their immediate or short-term maturities.
Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent
to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the
fair value is observable:
•

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active market for identical assets or liabilities;

•

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

•

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that
include inputs for the assets or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

Fair value hierarchy as at 31 March 2022

Financial liabilities
Contingent consideration

Level 1
HK$’000

Level 2
HK$’000

Level 3
HK$’000

Total
HK$’000

–

–

–

–

Information about Level 3 fair value measurement

Financial liabilities
Contingent
consideration
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Fair value as at
31 March 2022
HK$–

Fair value as at
31 March 2021 Valuation technique

Significant
unobservable
input

HK$– Discounted cash flow method was Discount rate of
used to capture the present value 16.91%
of the expected future economic
benefit that will flow out of the
Group arising from the contingent
consideration, based on an
appropriate discount rate

Relation of
significant
unobservable
inputs to fair
value
Probabilityadjusted
revenues and
profit with a
range from
HK$nil to
HK$276,000
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35.	FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(c)	Fair value and fair value hierarchy (Continued)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements
Contingent
consideration
HK$’000
At 1 April 2021
Acquisition of subsidiaries
Total losses in profit and loss

–
4,670
(4,670)

At 31 March 2022

–

36. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of
cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.
Bank
borrowings
HK$’000
At 1 April 2020
Repayment of bank borrowings
Finance costs
Early termination of leases
Rent concession
Financing cash flow (note)
At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021
Repayment of bank borrowings
Acquisition of subsidiaries
Finance costs
Rent concession
Financing cash flow
Exchange realignment
At 31 March 2022

Lease
Liabilities
HK$’000

Total
HK$’000

20,857
(5,857)
396
–
–
(396)

61,529
–
1,879
(10,576)
(1,589)
(16,260)

82,386
(5,857)
2,275
(10,576)
(1,589)
(16,656)

15,000
(15,000)
–
46
–
(46)
–

34,983
–
541
1,034
(560)
(12,521)
14

49,983
(15,000)
541
1,080
(560)
(12,567)
14

23,491

23,491

–

Note: The financing cash flows represented the net amount of new bank borrowings raised, interest payment of bank borrowings,
and repayment of lease liabilities including both principal and interest portions.

37. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION
During the year ended 31 March 2022, the acquisition of Lucky State Group was completed on 30
August 2021. The consideration was settled by issuance of promissory note which is subject to profit
guarantee. Details are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during the years ended 31
March 2022 and 2021 were as follows:

Short-term benefits
Post-employment benefits

2022
HK$’000

2021
HK$’000

1,683
47

2,090
74

1,730

2,164

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY
2022
HK$’000

2021
HK$’000

Non-current asset
Investment in a subsidiary

11,125

11,125

Current assets
Prepayments and other receivables
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries
Bank balances

774
103
27,630

195
8,768
4,784

28,507

13,747

500
18,898

532
1,000

19,398

1,532

9,109

12,215

20,234

23,340

9,600
10,634

9,600
13,740

20,234

23,340

Note

Current liabilities
Accruals
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary

Net current assets
Net assets
Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)
Movement in the Company’s reserves
Share
premium
HK$’000

Accumulated
losses
HK$’000

Total
HK$’000

At 1 April 2020
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year
Placing of shares

81,662
–
6,719

(70,974)
(3,667)
–

10,688
(3,667)
6,719

At 31 March 2021 and at 1 April 2021
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year

88,381
–

(74,641)
(3,106)

13,740
(3,106)

At 31 March 2022

88,381

(77,747)

10,634

40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at the date of this report are as follows:
Proportion
ownership interest
and voting right held
by the Company
Name of subsidiary

Place of
Place of
incorporation operation

Access Gear Investment Limited

BVI

Hong Kong

Access Smart Corporation Limited

Hong Kong

All Happiness Limited

Issued and fully
paid share capital

2022

2021 Principal activities

United States Dollar
(“USD”) 10,000

N/A

100% Investment holding

Hong Kong

HK$10,000

100%

100% Restaurant operations

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

HK$10,000

90%

90% Restaurant operations

Foodies Branding Limited

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

HK$1

100%

100% Investment holding

Foodies Group Limited

BVI

Hong Kong

USD1,000

100%

100% Investment holding

Foodies Management Limited

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

HK$1

100%

100% Provision of management
services to group
companies

Gold Pavilion Limited

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

HK$1

100%

100% Restaurant operations

Grace Wealth Holdings Limited

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

HK$100

N/A

Happy King Corporation Limited

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

HK$1

100%

100% Inactive

Jumbo Spirit Group Limited

BVI

Hong Kong

USD1,000

100%

100% Investment holding

100% Property investment in Hong
Kong
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40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
Proportion
ownership interest
and voting right held
by the Company

Name of subsidiary

Place of
Place of
incorporation operation

Issued and fully
paid share capital

2022

2021 Principal activities

Pacific Best Enterprises Limited

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

HK$1

100%

100% Restaurant operations

Pacific Rise Hong Kong Limited

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

HK$10,000

100%

100% Restaurant operations

Rainbow Power Holdings Limited

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

HK$1

100%

100% Restaurant operations

Sweetie Deli Garden Limited

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

HK$10,000

100%

100% Restaurant operations

Top Wealth International (HK)
Limited

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

HK$10

100%

100% Restaurant operations

Union Choice Limited

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

HK$101

100%

100% Provision of food processing
services to group
companies

Vast Dragon Asia Limited

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

HK$10,000

100%

100% Investment holding

Wealthy Development (HK) Limited Hong Kong

Hong Kong

HK$10,000

100%

100% Property investment in Hong
Kong

Wealth Step Enterprise Limited

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

HK$10

100%

100% Restaurant operations

Wealth Treasure Capital Investment Hong Kong
Limited

Hong Kong

HK$100

100%

100% Restaurant operations

Lucky State Investment Holdings
Limited

BVI

Hong Kong

USD50,000

100%

N/A Investment holding

Ivan International Biology Limited

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

HK$10,000

100%

N/A Investment holding

開封伊萬金生物科技有限公司

PRC

PRC

–

100%

N/A Investment holding

河南正修福來醫藥科技管理有限公司 PRC

PRC

–

100%

N.A Inactive

PRC

PRC

RMB5,000,000

100%

N/A Drug vending machines
operation

開封正修福來醫藥科技有限公司

All the companies comprising the Group have adopted 31 March as their financial year end date
except subsidiaries incorporated in PRC.
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41. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
On 20 April 2022, the Company has granted a total of 33,600,000 share options to 4 eligible
participants of the Company pursuant to the share option scheme of the Company adopted by the
Company on 29 January 2018 to subscribe for an aggregate of 33,600,000 new ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each of the Company, subject to the acceptance of the Share Options by the Grantees. The
total of 33,600,000 Shares to be subscribed under the Share Options represent approximately 3.5%
of the existing issued share capital of the Company as at the date of grant and approximately 3.38%
of the enlarged issued share capital of the Company, assuming the share options are fully exercised.
Details are set out in the Company announcement date 20 April 2022.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group pursuant to Rule 18.33 of
the GEM Listing Rules, as extracted from the published audited consolidated financial statements or the
Prospectus, is set out as follows:
Year ended 31 March
2018
HK$’000

2019
HK$’000

2020
HK$’000

2021
HK$’000

2022
HK$’000

Revenue

135,624

142,407

116,425

97,421

85,585

(Loss)/profit before taxation
Income tax (expense)/credit

(10,539)
(835)

(15,032)
(1,300)

(44,710)
95

8,735
16

3,929
91

(Loss)/profit for the year

(11,374)

(16,332)

(44,615)

8,751

4,020

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

(12,163)
789

(16,087)
(245)

(44,459)
(156)

8,585
166

4,007
13

(11,374)

(16,332)

(44,615)

8,751

4,020

2020
HK$’000

2021
HK$’000

2022
HK$’000

122,177
(100,279)

100,157
(61,410)

96,787
(53,996)

As at 31 March
2018
HK$’000
Assets and liabilities
Total assets
Total liabilities

Equity attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests
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2019
HK$’000

116,640
(33,069)

97,693
(30,804)

83,571

66,889

21,898

38,747

42,791

82,622
949

66,348
541

21,889
9

38,793
(46)

42,824
(33)

83,571

66,889

21,898

38,747

42,791

